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　　　　　　　　　　　l901－1943．
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This　paper　will　exalllille　the　letters　held　ill　the　archive　ofthe　Royal　Geographical

Society　irl　Lolld〔）n，　pel’tainillg　to　Sir．N　la　rc　Aurel　Steill．　It　will　bc　divided　illto

two　parts；this　Hrst　part　will　deal　with　the　period　1901－1914　while　the　second

will　Iook　at　the　period　lgl5－1943．

　　Stein　is　cons．　idered　one　ofthe　fbrenlost　exl）lorers　ofthe　S　ilk　Road．　His　coll－

tribution　to　our　knowledge　about　the　Siik　Road　is　enonnous，　Ilot．just　through

his　archeological　digs　but　also　because　of　his　extensive　and　detailed　sur、’e｝’s　of

previouslyしmcharted　areas，　He　broughtback　literally　t（ハns　ofarti白cts　including

wall　paintillgs、　sculptures、111anuscripts、1111cit・1コt　silks　and　perhaps　his　1110st　fU－

mous　prize、　thc　earliest　known　example　of　a　printed　b（）ok　the　Dia〃70iid　Si．｛ti－［i．

Peter　Hopkirk　ill　his　book、　F〔）reigrl　Devils　otl　t／le　Silk　Road、　described　Stein　as

“ the　9．　iamt　ofCelltral　Asian　archaeology．”1

　　Steill　was　born　ill　Budapest，　Hmgry　ill　1826．　Although　his　parents　were　Jex、T－

ish，　the｝・had　him、　like　his　elder　brother、　baptized　a　Christian．　They　felt，　consid－

ering　the　times、　he　would　have　more　oPPortunities　open　to　him　as　a　Chri　s．　tiaii’
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As　a　boy，　Stein　was　greatly　interested　in　Alexander　the　Great，　and　spent　much　of

his　life　tnydng　to　retrace　the　routes　that　took　the　Greeks　illto　Central　Asia　and　to

show　how　they　influenced　the　culture　there．　He　stud｛ed　oriental　languages　at

the　universities　of、「ienna　and　Leipzig，　and　received　his　PhD．廿om　TUbingen　at

the　age　of　twen“r－one．　As　an　orientalist　England　was　considered　the　best　place

f（）rhiln　to　Pursue　his　studies．　There丘）re　a丘er　completing　his　doctorate，　he　spellt

the　next　three　years　at　Oxford　University　and　the　British　Museum　studying　clas－

sical　and　oriental　archaeology　and　languages．　He　did　not，　however，　study　Chi－

nese，　cl・ll　omission　that　was　later　to　cost　hiln　a　number　of　i】11portallt　oPPortunities．

He　also　had　to　interrupt　his　time　ill　Britain、vith　a　year’s　national　service　in　the

Hungarian　army．　Dtlring　his　period　ofservice，　he　was　trained　ill　field　surveying，

askiIl　that　he　was　later　to　put　to　great　use　in　the　unmapPed　regions　of　Central

Asia．　His　time　in　the　arlny　did［eave　its　mark．　Photographs　of　Stein　show　a　trim，

sInartly（lressed　man　with　a　somewhat　inilitar）・bearing　that　he　retained　through－

out　his　life．　His　approach　to　plalming　his　expeditions　was　also　along　the　lines　of

mUitary　campaiglls．、Vhitfield　ilコher　book、　A　t〃’el　Stein　o〃tlie　Silk　Road，　states　the

way　Stein　conducted　his　expeditions，“was　arranged　as　a　series　of　campaigns：me－

ticulously　planned，　executed　to　the　last　detail　and　with　a　strict　hierarchy　of　re－

sponsibilities　among　the　players：he　was　Commanding　Oftlcer．”2

　　Steill　got　his　first　chance　to　test　his　theories　aboしlt　the　Silk　Road　when、　at　the

age　of　twenty－six，　he　loined　the　education　service　at　Lahore　as　Principal　ofthe

Oriental　College．　While　the　job　itself　was　not　so　importallt　to　S．　tein，　it　did　get

him　to　Asia．　As　a　man　without　independent　financial　recourses　or　personal

connections，　he　had　to　take　any　opportunities　that　presented　themselves．　How－

ever、　it　was　llot　ulユtil已lay　l　900（at　the　age　of　thirty－seven）that　Stein　was　able　to

set　out　on　the丘rst　of　his　three　Inajor　expeditions（i．e．1900－1901，1906－1908

and　lgl3－1916）to　explore　the　ancient　trade　routes　iinking　China　with　India

and　the　XVest．　Each　expedition　fbllowed　a　different　route　across　the　Pamir

N．lountains　to　Sinkiang　（Chinese　Tしlrkestan）and　traced　the　routes　running

north　and　south　through　the　Taklamakan　Desert．

　　Steilゴs　maill　correspondent　at　the　Royal　Geographical　Societ｝・（hereinafter

referred　to　as　the　RGS）was　the　then　Secretary　of　the　Society，　Iohn　Scott　Keltie

（1840－1927）also　a　distinguished　geographer．　Keltie　had　written　a　llしimber　of

books　on　geography；been　an　editor　fbr　major　publishing　houses　such　as・N・lac－

millan＆Co；and　held　a　number　of　pog．　ts　at　the　RGS　before　becoming　its　Secre－

tarv　trolτl　l885　to　l　gl5．
　　　

’
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［Note］An　Examinarion　of　the　Corre　s．　pondence　betsveen　Sir　Alarc　Aurel

　　　　Srein　and　the　Royal　Geographical　Societ）’1901－1943．（Tw［LLEY）

　　Stei11’s　correspondence　with　thc　RGS　began　ill　l90L　after　having　completed

his　first　major　expedition　into　the　Kohtan　area　of　Chinese　Tしirkestan．　It　was

durillg　this　expeditio［l　that　he　uncovered　buried　Silk　Road　towns　alld丘）und

evidence　ofan　unknown　Buddhist　civilization．

　　Steill　had　sought　an　introduction　to　the　RGS　from　his　friend，　Royston，　who

worked　at　the　British　Mしls　eulll，　III　l　901、Stein　asked　hiln　to　fbrward　to　the　So－

cietv　all　article　he　had　written　about　his　travels　in　Chinese　Turkestan．3　Keltie
　　　ぼ

accepted　it　fbr　inclusion　ill　the　Society’s．iournal．　This　marked　the　beginning　of

along　and，　particularly　fbr　Stein，　very　fruitful　relationship．

　　The　correspondence　bet、veell　the　tss・o　men　bears　testimony　to　the廿iendship

that　developed　over　the　years．　Not　only　did　Keltie　aid　Steill　above　and　beyond

his　responsibilities　as　Secretar｝・，　but　their　letters　to　each　other　also　became

longer　and　covered　mutual　topics　of　interesc　As　will　be　seen　later　in　this　paper，

their　opinions　on　people　they　knew　also　became　franker．

　　The　RGS　archive　contaills　ab（）ut　1311etters　of　this　period、860f　which　are

丘om　Stcin　to　Keltie．　Stein’s　letters　are　all　o11丘ne　white　stationery，　fblded　in　half

and　written　ill　his　clear，　elegant　script．　The＞・refiect　his　character　very　clearly．

He　was　never　wastefUl　with　money　but　did　recognize　the　value　of　good　quality：

hence　the　fine　white　paper．　His　handwriting　is　also　indicative　of　his　character、

Le．　clear　and　precise．

　　Stein，　although　born　a　Hungarian，　warmly　embraced　the　values　ofthe　British

Empire．　Although　he　spellt　onl｝・afew　years　of　stud｝・ill　England　he　developed

an　affection　and　affmi“r　fbr　England　and　came　to　regard　it　as　home．　Indeed

when　he　writes　of“home”ill　his　letters　it　is　England　to　which　he　is　referring．

And　like　many　people　who　live　abroad　f（）r　long　periods　he　had　a　somewhat　nos－

talgic　view　of　England．1111904，　he　became　a　British　citizen．and　was　knighted　in

1912．

　　There　are　only　a　fe“r　copies　of　Keltie’s　handwritten　letters．　His、vriting　is

somewhat　difficult　to　decipher　cllld　it　must　have　beell　a　relief　to　all　when　he

began　using　a　t｝？ewriter．

　　It　is　perhaps　difficult　for　us　today　with　our　emails，　faxes　and　satellite　com－

munication　media　to　appreciate　how　important　letters　once　were．　Indeed　letters

were　the　only　way　people　could　commullicate　over　long　distances、　providil】g　an

essential　link　to　honne　aIId　a　source　of　infc）rmation　about　the　rest　of　the　world

fbr　those　living　ill　distant　parts．　Stein　was　an　enthusiastic　and　regular　correspon－

dent，　As　a　single　man　far　away丘om　holne，　his丘iends　were　very　important　to
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hiln．　Although　a　solitary　and　shy　mall，　the　friends　he　did　niake　he　kept　for　a

long　tilne．　Fcハr（，ver　forty　years、　he　I、アrote　to　his　close　friendg．、Prof．　and　Nlrs．

AIIan、　once　a　week　and　they　responded　iIl　kind．4

　　　Letters　would　arrive　ill　large　bundles；he　received　“perhapS　200　（letters）at

a　time，　in　deliveries　separated　by　gaps　of　several　Illonths　which　emphasized

the　ellorlnous　dis．　tance　between　him　and　his　friends．”5　1n　wl・itillg　to　friellds、　he

always　took　care　to　send　birthday　greetings，　gifts，　aiid　even　pressed　wild　nowers；

and　he　always　nnentioned　how　he　used　the　presents　he　had　received　（such　as

910ves　or　books）．6

　　　S．　teill　not　only　used　his　letters　to　keep　ill　touch　with　friends　but　also　to　con－

tact　institしltions　and　people　he　thought　coしild　be　of　help　to　him、、、・hether　by

grallting　him　fntincial　aid　or　by　publicizing　his　work．　He　fielt　ver｝r　s．　trongly　that

he　was　doing　ilコlpOI’tallt　work、　which　if　recogllized、　would　be　9．　upPo　rted．　He

soしight　recognition　Ilot　for　himself　but　for　his　work　and　although　a　Inodest

nlan　with　niodest　Ileeds、　he　lleN’er　shrank　frolコ〕askiiig　for　help　fo　i・that　work，

Despite　this　niodesqr　however、　he　was　quite　awal・e　of　his　own　wol・th，　In　one

illstallce、　he　asked　Keltie　to　cc）　llvi　llce　Lord　Curzon、　the　then　Vicero、’to　India，7

that　the　Indian　Office“could　with　advantage　to　itselfeinploy　111e　on　tasks　Inore

important　and　useful　than　those　to　which　I　anl　ILI　LI　t　at　pres　ent．”8　This　t｝pe　of

request　was　typical　of　Stein：he　was　qしlite　prepared　to　ask　amyolle　he　thought

coしlld　help　him．

The　early　20th　century　was　a　tinie・fg・eat　expl・・ati・1・f・r　E・r・peans．　II・Cen－

tral　Asia、　Stein’s　ma．ior　rivals　Sven　Hedin　of　Sweden，　Albert　von　le　Coq　of

Germany　and　Paul　Pelliot　of　France　all　soしlght　to　find　tlllciellt　ruills　for　their

o“’ll　glory　and　that　oftheir　respective　c（）しmtries．　Stein　had　to　con⊃petc　for　rec－

ognition　and　funding　fbr　his　work　not　only　with　his　international　rivals、　but

also　with　other　British　explorers．　Explorers　such　as　Scott　ll　lld　Shackleton　wel’e

seeking　to　secure　Antarctica石or　the　British．　Fしmdil】g　for　all　such　expcditions

canle　from　grallts　from　the　governlnent；mしlseums；academic　societies（such　as

the　RGS）；wealth｝・industrialists；and　the　public．　It　was　not　easily　wol1．　S．　cott，

for　illstallce、　had　to　toLII－the　countryside　giving　lectures　toしmeiith　usiii　g．　tic　audi－

ences　amd　spellding　Inany　nights　ilコcheap　hotels．　His　frus．　tratioiコwas　clearly

evident　in　the　followinLq　extract　from　a　letter　he　wrote：

Betweel1£三〇and£30　froni、、’olx’erhaniptoii．．．£40　t（）day．．．nothing　fr（）｜n、、τalcs

．．．this　p｜ace　wOII’t　do、　Fnコwastillg　Iコ1y　time　to．sollle　extellt．．．［doiゴt　thillk　thcl・c

is　a　great　deal　of　llloney　ill　the　Ileighborhood　．．．thiiigs　have　been　so－so　here　．．．1
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［Note］An　ExaTninarioii　ofthe　Corrcspondencc　benvecn　Sirλlarc　Aurcl

　　　　　Stein　and　the　Royid　Ge〔〕graphiCal　SOCiet）・1901－1943．（TWH．LヒY）

　　　　　spokc　llot　we［1　but　the　rooln　was　beastly　and　attendance　s．　mal］　．．．another　very

　　　　　P…day　yesterday，　nea・ly　e・ery・nc・ut．9

　　Although　fしmdraising　was　a　problem　for　S．　cott、　the　r（）malltic　and　popular　im－

age　of　his　expedition　resulted　in　8，000　men　volunteel・ing　to．ioill　the　endeavor．

The“national　pride”aspect　of　the　Antarctic　explorers、　as　each　soしlght　to　be　the

盲rst　to　plant　their　c（）untry’s　flag．　at　the　Pole，　certainly　overshadowed　Central

Asian　expeditions．　It　was　agaillst　this　high　profile　that　Stein　had　to　conlpete五）r

fu　nds．　The　shy　amd　scholarly　Steill　did　n〈）t　coUI’t　attel）tioll　and　his　fmdiiigs．　，

althoしlgh　exciting　to　othel・scholars、　did　llot　as　easily　capture　the　pしlblic’s　imagi－

11atiOll　ill　the　same　way　as　Scotピs　Antarctic　expedition．

REPORTS　IN“THE　TIMES”

Stein’s　lack　of　financial　independence　was　a　constant　problem　£or　hiln　and　a

source　of　great　frしlstratioll．　Not　ollly、vas　he　f（）rced　to　seek　patronag．　e・he　also

had　to　keep　his　work　ill　the　public　eye．　Unf（）rtunately，　it　was　llot　enough　to

sh〈）w　that　his　work　was　groulldbreakillg；it　also　had　to　be　interestillg　enough　to

attract　rich　spolls（｝rs．　S．　tein　was　well　llss・are　ofthe　inlportallce　ofpublishillg　and

his　work　was　freqLlently　publig．　hed　ill　the　RGS’slourllal　and　the　Asiatic　Societゴs

．iournal．　He　even　wl・ote　a‘LpopulaiJ”version　ofhis行rst　expeditic）ll、　Stl〃‘f－Buried

RI∫i〃s　of　Kliotan，　published　in　1903．　Although　it　was　a　best　seller、　Stein　did　llot

like　writillg　for　the　gelleral　public　and　gave　up　writing　ill　this　popular　style　after

his　second　expedition　to　collcentl’ate　oll　lollger　scholarly　tolnes・

　　　One　way　lnany　explorers　ofthis　period　kept　the　public　interested　in　their　ex－

peditions　was　to　send　regular　reports　of　theirjourlleys　to　the　newspapers・In　an

era　before　televis．　ion　or　radio、　these　reports　lllust　ha、・e　beell　very　exciting　t（）the

gelleral　pしlblic．　As　such　they　enabled　men｜ike　Scott　to　gain　nlass　popularity・

　　　As　Britain’s　leadillg　ncwspaper、η］eη〃10∫regularly　carried　rep（ハrts　froni

various　expl（ハrers．　S　teill　had　relied　oll　his　clos．　e　friend，　Prof．　Tholnas　Arnold、　to

write　reports　of　his　progress　based　on　his　letters、　for　9．　ublllis　f　ioll　to’17ie　Times・

In　I906，　Stein　had　begull　his　second　expeditkm　to　Chinese　Turkestan．　InApril

of　that　year，　he　wl・ote　to　the　RGS　suggesting　that　data　from　his　report　might

be　acceptable　fbr　inclusi（ハ11　in　the　Societyツs　jourllal。10　A　［nonth　later　he　wrote

that　he　had　conipleted　five　detailed　pages　of　geographicaL　archaeological　and

ethllographic　observatiolls　for　sublnission　to　the．jouriital　and　he　als（）asked・

一　5　一
237



‘‘

In　case　you　could　kindly　arrange　to　place　the　above　also　at　the　disposal　of

The　Tifnes．”li

　　Keltie　acceded　to　Stein’s　request，　informing　hiln　that　fbr　nlany｝Tears　he　had

been　resPonsible　fbr　all　geographical　matters　in　71ie　Time5：and　that　he　had　al－

ready　contacted　Prof．　Arnold，　who　was　happy　to　be　relieved　of　his　duties　ill　this

matter．12

　　Did　Keltie　realize　that　he　had　taken　on　a　responsibility　that　would　be　his　until

hc　retired　as　Secretan・ofthe　SocietsT　in　l　915？Alld　had　Steill　been　a、、・are　of　Kel一
づ　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　i

tie’s　link　with　The　Times？At　this　point，　Keltie　had　beell　in　correspondence　with

Stein　fbr　five　vears．　Most　oftheir　letters　till　then　concerned　articles　for　the　RGS
　　　　　　　　　　　　ン

journal；presentations　that　Stein　would　give　to　the　Society；and　Stein’s　renlarks

about　his　work．　So　perhaps　his　request　to　Keltie　fbr　help　in　placing　olle　article

in　77ie　Tinies　was　just　that．　However，　it　is　surprising　that　Stein　did　not　kllow　of

Keltie’s　connection　to　the　Ilewspaper，　as　he　was　a　subscriber　to　The　Times　and

regularly　received　his　copy　along　with　h三s　letters．

　　Keltie　was　probably　unprepared　fbr　the　amount　and丘equency　of　Stein’s　cor－

respondence・　Soon　a丘er　he　accepted　the　respoIlsibility　he　tried　to　get　Stein　to

reduce　the丘equency　of　his　correspon（王ence．　In　reply　Stein　wrote　the　fbllo、、rin9：

“ Ifllly　reallze　the　truth　of　what　you　say　as　to　the　advisability　ofnot　niakin9111y

communication　too　frequent．”13　And　again　ill　l907，　Stein　accepted　Keltie’s

opillioll　that　his　notes　were　too　detailed丘）r　subnlission　toτ／1〈）T∫〃zes，14

　　Stein　was　not　tmapPreciative　of　Keltie’s　help　with　The　Ti’11e∫and　o丘en

started　his　letters　by　thanking．　hiln　fbr　writillg　the　reports．　Moreover，　his　trust

in　Keltie’s　opilliollS．　as　to　the　length　and　frequency　ofthe　reports　is　also　evident，

as　ilhlstrated　above．　Clearly、　he　also　trusted　him　to　decide　what　was　appropriate

fbr　inclusion．　、Vhen　Stein　suffered　frostbite，　which　caused　hiln　to　lose　two

toes　and　the　top．joilltS　ofthree　more，　he　reported　this　to　Keltie　as　anししawkward

mishtip”and　asked　hin〕to“ please　cし1t　it　out　if　you　think　it　is　too　personaL’115

For　Stein　it　was　the　reports　on　his　work　that　wcre　illlporta1〕t　not　personal

Illatters．

　　Havhlg　Keltie　write　up　reports　of　his　travels　also　enabled　Stein　to　keep　in

contact　with　llis　friellds．　As　he　stated　t（）Keltie　in　one　letter，　the　report　ill　The

Ti〃les　was　usefU1“because　it　would　gi、’e　lle“Ts　of　my　doings　to　nlany　friends

wllo　ibllow　Iny、vork　with　a　personal　interest　and　to“Thoin　I　callllot　write　f（）r

wallt　oftinユe．lh　I6
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［Note］An　Examination　ofthe　CorrespondeIlce　beτween　Sir　Marc　Aurel

　　　　Stein　and　the　Royal　Geographical　Society　1901－1943．（FI『wlLLEY）

MAPS　AND　PANORAMAS

Numerous　letters　deal　with　the　maps　and　palloramas　Steill　created，　Although

he　did　not　see　himself　as　a　geographer、　much　of　his　time　dしlring　expeditions

was　involved　with　surveying　and　geographical　description．　、Vesterners　had

not　charted　inuch　of　the　area　Stein　covered　so　he　recognized　the　importance

and　necessity　ofaccurate　maps．　Others　back　home　ill　Britain　were　interested　in

accurate　maps　for　another　reason．　XN’hen　Stein　first　arrived　ill　Asia，　the“Great

GaInビ17　was　at　its　height．　Russia　was　beginning　to　expand　southwards．　The

British　feared　Russia　had　its　eye　on　India、　the　jewel　in　the　British　Empire’s

crown．　The　large，　uncharted　desert　and　lnoulltailloしls　area　to　the　north　of　the

coulltlr＞’seemed　the　most　likely　entry　P（）int　60r　an　invadiiig　army・’1’his　was　the

area，　where　officers　and　explorers　from　both　sides　would　later　conle　to　nlap　the

terrain　through　which　all　army　would　have　to　march．

　　Steill　was　obviously　aware　that　his　maps　were　useful　not　only　to　explorers

and　academics　but　to　the　militarv　as　wel1．　In　1907，　he　inf（）rlned　Keltie　that　he
‘

had　been　instructed　by　the　Indian　Foreign　Department　llot　to　publish　anything

concerning　North　Tibet　without　subniitting．　it　first　f（）r　approvaL　He　was　uiisure

about　his　ground　survey　of　the　Nan－shan　ranges　but　sellt　it　to　the　Foreign　Of－

fice　to　check　bef（）re　publication．i8

　　Even　today　Stein’s　surveys　are　still　highly　regarded　as　evidenced　ill　the　Follow－

ing　article　by　Karl　E．　R｝アavec：

The　lnaps　illustrating　thc　archaeological　surveys　of　Sir　Aurel　Stein’s（：entral　Asian

expeditions　relllain　t〔〕this　da｝・the　Illost　authoritative　map　series　concerning　the

location　of　archaeological　mol〕uluents　in　the］］al’im　Basin　and　Gansu　Corridor　of

、、アcsterll　China．

．．．，．。The　nlaPs　thus　collttlill　a　wealth　of　intoriikation　oll　the　his．　torical，cultしiral　and

physical　Seogl’aph｝『ofa、’ast　region　of　Central　Asia．　h　is　in　part　becaしlse　of　this　in＿

terdisciplinary　nature・fSteil1’s　maps　that　the）’are　stil1　the　main　auth・ribア・11・Mall＞’

geographical　aspe（：ts　ofaしllliclue　region　of（．：entral　Asia＿＿19

　　In　l902，　Stein　was　invited　by　the　RGS　to　give　a　talk　about　his　first　expedition

to　Chinese　Turkcstan．　　His　two　Inain　purposes　fbr　being　in　London　“Tere、

firs．　tly、　to　be　at　the　British　Museum　to　unpack　and　catalogue　the　alltiquities　he

had　found　and　sec（）ndly，　to　write　a　rep〈）rt〈）f　the　expedition．　Originall｝・、　S　teiii

informed　Keltie　that　he　would　be　able　to　give　the　talk　with　l、000　photos　and

［naps．　No　doubt　to　Keltie’s　relief，　Stein　later　limited　the　number　of　Slides　to
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70．20For　his　report　in　the　RGS　journal，　Stein　was　very　particしilar　about　the　de－

tailed　maps　that　were　t（）accompally　the　article．　He　believed　that　the　usual　scale

（1；1，500，000）would　not　be　detailed　enough　to　include　local　nalnes．　He　sug－

gested　instead　a　scale（ハf　l：500，000　which　would　be　apProxinlately　identical　to

the　scale　on　the　original　survey　of　1”＝8inls．　Since　sollle　ofthe　areas　were　be－

illg　surveyed　for　the　first　time，　it　was　illlportallt　to　be　as　precise　as　possible．　He

suggested　also　that　the　nnaP　be　put　oll　two　sheets　at　a　cost　of　about£150；and

that　half　the　cost　be　b（）rne　bv　the　RGS　and　the　other　half　bv　the　India　Office．
」　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　‘

Mr．　Holderness、　Secretary　of　the　India　Off］ce　infonned　him　that　they　agreed

with　this　idea．21

　　1t　isしmclear　whether　the　RGS　ever　agreed　to　Stein’s　suggestioll、　but　there　are

anumber　of　references　in　later　letters　to　the　publication　of　the　maps，　which

culniinated　ill　Keltie　infomlillg　Steill　that　the　RGS　was　umble　to　afford　the

£，150．22

　　Another　importallt　issue　between　S．　teill　and　the　RGS　was　the　publicatioiit　of

the　photog．　raphic　panoralnas　he　had　taken　on　his　expeditions。　The　illlpOrtallCe

of　photograplly　had、　since　its　inventioll　earlier　in　the　century、　been　recognized

ill　recording　archaeology．　Steill　took　p（）rtable　canleras、91ass　plates　and　all　the

necessary　chemicals　for　developing　with　him　oll　his　expeditions．　He　was　all

enthusiastic　photographer：the　British　iM　useum　alone　has　a　collection　of　over

ten　thousand　of｝his　negatives　and　plates．

　　InIuly　l903，　Keltie　received　a　letter　fr（）m　the　India　Office　proposing　that　they

contribute£50　toward　the　publication　of　Stein’s　pallollalllaS　if　the　RGS　agreed

to　do　likewise．23　Unlike　the　mal）s、　this　proposal　was　sしiccessftil　and　Stei！1　began

orgallizing　the　photos．　However，　in　l904、　it　looked　like　the　palloramas　would

suf民r　the　sanne£ate　as　the　Illaps，　as　the　India　O　ffi　ce　refused　to　pay　the£50．　At

that　point，　the　RGS’s　Council　came　to　the　rescしle，　agreeillg　to　bear　the　full

cost．241n　that　same　year、　Stein　had　been　awarded　the　RGS’s　pl－estigious　Back

Grant　ill　recognition　of　his　sしlrvey　work　in　the　Kun－lun　Nlountains．　Survcy

work　had　not　bcen　Stei1ゴs　prilnary　goal，　but　it　had　grown　as　a　result　of　his　ill－

terest　in　exploration　auld　becanne　an　increasingl｝r　imporkmt　part　ofhis　work．　It

may　be　in　part　because　ofthe　recognition　of　this．　aspect　ofStei1ゴs　work　that　the

RGS　paid　in　full　for　the　publication　ofthe　panoramas．

　　Stein、　as　mentioned　earlier、　had　a　great　belief　ill　the　superiority　of　his　work，

He　held　hinng．　elfand〈）thers　to　very　high　standards．　Iust　be　fo　re　his　phc）tos　were

accepted　for　publication，　he　melltioned　he　had　received　photos　from　Dr。
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［N・t・］A・〕E・Lmlinati・n・frhc　C・rre・p・・d・ncc　b・n・・e…Si・M・・c　A・r・l

　　　　　Stcin　alld　the　Ro｝・：1】Geographic：tl　Socicr｝・1901－1943．（TwlLLEY）

Alluassy’s　fbrtl、collling　work　oll　the　Thial1－Shan　but　that　they“have　been　pre－

pared　from　　materials　a、’owedly　greatly　inferior　t（、　my　s｝・stelnatic　phot〈）－

theodolite　work，　wllich　has　Ilot　had　thc　advantage　ofsuch　attelltiOII．”25

　　　Thc　work　on　the　panoralllas　was　rather　drawll　out，　which　is　perhaps　llot　sur－

prising　since　Steill　was　busy　writing　both　a　scholarly　rep（）rt　of　his　tl　rst　expedi－

tion，　Ancient　Klrot‘lil（published　ill　l907）alid　a“popular”、’ersi（）ll、　Saiid　Bl〃’ied

R〃i’15（｝∫KhOtan　（pUbliShed　ill　l903）；preparing　fOr　hiS　SeCOnd　eXpeditiOn　tO

「1’urkes．　tan；and　taking　up　a　new　F）OsitiOll　as　Inspector　General　of　Education　in

the　Punjab．　That　he　t（）ok　a　long　time　is　b（）rne　out　by　the　nしIlnber　of　letters　ill

which　the　palloramtls　are　nnentioned；fourteen　in　a11正）etwcell　S　epte　iiibei’1903

（when　Stein　said　he　started　workillg（）ll　then126）and　October　l906　（whell　he

thanked　Keltie　for　s．　ending　hiln　a　copy　ofthe　fmal　proo応）．27

　　　1n　l905，　Steill　rccei、・ed　Ilews　about　the　ptlllOralllas、vhile　he　was　in　Peshawar．

F．11sworth　Hしmtington，　an　Americall　geographer、　passed　through　and　t（）ld　S．　teill

he　had　seen　the　proofS　and　they　were　good．28　Ho、、・ever，　Stein　himself　was

hal・der　to　pleas　e．　In　June　ofthe　sanle｝・ear、　he　rcceived　the　proofs　and　realized

that　there　was　llo　explanation　with　the　photos．　He　informed　Keltie　and　asked

advice　about　how　much　he　should　wl・ite　foreach　plate．29　Keltie　MU　S．　t　have　given

him　guidelines．　f〔）r　ill　S　teinゴs　ncxt　letter　he　stated、“I　will　prepare　lny　statelllellt

ti・reaCh　pan・ranコa　aS　y・U　SU99eSt．”3°

　　　It　is　reniarkable　that　he　had　amy　time　to　think　about　the　palloralnas、　as　he

was　busy　preparing　fbr　his　secolld　expedition　to（：hinese　Turkestan、　which　was

to　last　froln　Apri1　1906　to　OctoberlgO8．　Keltie、　however，　xvas　llot　going　to　let

hiin　fo　rget　the　pllll（）ralllas・　In　Febuai’〉・1906、　he　、、・rote　to　Stein，　xvishing　hiln

luck　on　his　fbrthconling　expedition　and　expl’essillg　the　hope　that　he　would　f］n－

ish　the　panoralnas　betbre　his　dcparture．31　This、、・as　not　to　be　the　case　ho、vever、

as　Stein　had　to　take　thelll　with　him（）ll　the　expedition　pronlising　to　get　them

finished　prOnlptl）・．32

　　　While　Keltie　wasしmdoubtedly　frustrated　by　the　sl（ハw　progress（）f　this　work、

S　teill　had　much　to　do．　He　had　t〔｝　keep　complete　llotes　oll　the　expcdition，　which

he　would　Iaterしlse　as　the　basis　for　his　bo（ハk　Rtli〃∫o∫∬）esel・t　Catha）・33　and　his

report　Sc’riildia34・　He　also　had　to　fmis．h　corrections　of　the　proofs　of　Ancieirt

5ぐ／lotan35：the　report〈）fhis　first　expedition；keep　up　with　his　I・eg．　ular　correspol1－

dence；and　lead　his　group　ofmen　and　mules　through　dangerous　moulltailコs　and

gol・ges．　In　May，　he　described　the　progress　of　his　jourlley　thus：“despite　hard

Iwchi・g　l　c・…ed　s・nle　350　miles　s・fa・i・three　weeks…er　r・・gh　g・・und
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mostly，　but　expect　the　real　trial　ahead　on　crossing　the　Pamirs．”36　As　he　had

predicted、　crossing　the　Pamirs、vas　extremely　hard　going．　He　led　his　group　ot

l2niules　and　a　handful　of　inen　up　a　snow－filled　gorge　to　the　sumniit　more　than

ten　thousand　feet　above　sea　level　and　down　the　other　side　where　a“sheer　snow

wall　droPPed　a　hしlndred　feet　to　the　alniost　equally　precipitous　llloulltailコside・

The　way　down　was　marked　by　steps　trodden　into　the　snow　at　three－or　four－

fc）ot　vertical　inter、・als　by　illdefhtigable　dak　runners．”37　1t　is　alllazillg　that　under

such　conditions　he　managed　to　g．et　any　work　done．

　　By　Iuly，　Stein　had　finished　the　final　corrections　to　AiiCierit　Khotan　and　by

September，　he　was　in　Khotan　preparinq．　for　the　next　part　of　his　journe｝アacross

the　Taklamakall　Desert．　As　he　informed　Keltie，　he　had　a　little　more　tilne　to

coniplete　the　panoralnas　and　prepare　a　short　paper　to　accompally　them・38 　This

must　have　been　accepted　as　in　October　he　thanked　Keltie　f（）r　the　final　coPy、

stating　that　the　pa！lorac　nlas　were　excellent　and　that　he　was　very　pleased．39

　　The　palloramas　were　published　in　l908．　Keltie　wrote　to　the　India　Office　ilモ

丘）rnling　theln　ofthe　publication　date　and　requesting　tl、em　to　pay　the　originally

agreed　Llpoll£50．40　UTnfortunately，　there　is　no　response　to　Keltie’s　request　ill

the　archive　and　it　seems　likelv　based　oll　the　India　Office’s　fiorlner　reluctance　that

　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　
イ

they　may　have　refしised・t・pay・

　　The　only　other　reference　by　the　India　O伍ce　regarding　the　pall（ハranlas　was

from　Col．　S，　G．　Burrard，　Survevor　General　of　the　India　Office、　who　wrote　to
i

thank　the　RGS　for　sellding　him　t、、・o　copies　ofthe　book．41　Stein　had　requested

the　RGS　to　send　59（：opies　to　various　institutions　and　colleagues　42　partly　no

doubt　to　advance　knowledge　of　his　work　and　partly　in　the　hope　of　attracting

future　support．　No　nlatter　how　niuch　Stein　disliked　the　India（．）ffice、　his　lack　of

fu　nds　meallt　he　was　dependent　on　them　for　a　full　time　job．　And　since　he　had

also　been　granted　a　lollg　leave　of　absence　so　he　had　to　show　that　his　time　had

been　usefully　spent．

　　1）erhaps　his　efforts　at　g．　elf－proniotion　were　successful，　s．　ince　the　India　Office

offered　him　the　post　of　Superintendent　in　the　ArchaeolotJical　Departmellt　ill

　l909．　It　seeined　all　ideal　post　for　Stein，　but　althoug．　h　he　recognized　the　need　for

ajob　to　keep　him　in　India、　what　he　really　wanted　was　the　freedom　and　the　re－

sources　to　explore　as　he　wished。
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［Note］An　Examination　ofthe　Corrcspondencc　betwecn　SirMarc　Allrel
　　　　　Stcin　and　the　Royζll　Geographical　Socict｝・1901－1943．（Tw［LLEY）

BOOKS

1）uring　the　period　covered　by　this　paper，　Steill　wrote　three　books　describing

the　ts、・o　malor　expeditions　he　had　undertaken．　The　books　take　different　ap－

proaches二there　are　two　“PoPしilar”43　accoullts．、（as　S　teill　himself，　called　theln）

aimed　at　the　general　l）ublic　and　a　scholarly　report．　Stein　was　never　very　colll－

fortable　with　writing　popular　books，　but　it、、・as　essential　that　he　keep　his　work　ill

the　public　eye．　The　two　b（）oks　il／this　vein　were；Stllld－Buried　Ruins　of　Kliotan，

the　account　ofhis　first　expedition，　and　Ruills（！戸De∫ei’t（；a　tlltl／V，　ab（ハut　the　second

exped｛tion・He　was　only　able　to　get　his、’ery　detailed　scholarly　rcport　of　the　first

expedition；、－XllcielltKhotan　pubUshed　in　l907．

　　　There　are　a　nulnber　of　references．　in　the　archive　to　the　books．　These　pertain

not　only　to　the　colltent　ofthe　books、　but　also　to　the　publishers，　The　RGS（ハften

acted　as　tl・11　intermediar）・betweell　its　iiienibel・s　and　con〕mercial　pしiblishers．

This　was　the　case　with　Stein，　In　1903，　he　infbrmed　Keltie　that　he　had　recovered

the　publishing　rights　to　his行rst　book　fr（）m　Fisher　8（Unwin，　the　publishers、　by

purchasing　the　blocks　at　a　cost　of　£24．　Stein　hoped　he　couid　gct　Nlr，　Colles　of

Hurst＆Blackell　to　accept　it　for　publication　and　asks　for　Keltie’s　recommenda－

tloll　if　contacted　bv　Colles．44　This　must　have　occurred、　as　onlv　four　nnoiiths
’　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　 　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　‘

later，　Stein　thanked　Keltie　tk）r　his　support　and　infbrmed　him　the　b（）ok　had　been

republished　in　a　new，　cheaper　edition、45

　　　Nlany　of　Stei1ゴs　scholarly　books　were　pしlblished　by　the　Clal・endon　Press　ill

（）xf（）rd　who　seenl　to　have　found　dealing　with　Stein　a　difficult　task．　In　a　letter　to

Keltie　from　William　Foster　of　the　lndia　O缶ce，　the　latter　ga、・e　a　very　frank　ap－

praisal　of　Stein．　He　remal’ked　that　the　two－、．rolume　book　of　Stein’s（．4∫1cie∫1亡

Kliotan）was　niuch　longer　than　thc　Clarendon　Press　had　bargained　fc）r　and

c〈）mmented　as　follows・c“（）ul’fascintltillg　traveller　generally　gets　the　best　of　ally

bargaill　he　Inakes　though（me　nlust　own　that　he　nユakes　a　worthy　use　of　his

encroachments．”46　Nlany　others　wh（）had　deahngs　with　Steill　would　no　doubt

have　agreed　with　Foster．

　　　S・　tein　continued　working　on　the　scholarly　report　of　his　second　expedition、

Serindi‘1，　which　would　not　be　published　until　l921．　It　was　evell　lll（）re　inlll）ellSe，

colllprising　five　vo1しlnles：three　oftext；one　of　plates；and　another　of　iiinety－　foし1r

maPS・

　　　Stein　had　similar　problems　with　another　publisher　that　Keltie　introduced　him

to；nanielsr－N　Iac　ni　illan，47　Keltie　was　a　fornner　editor　at．NIacIniilan　and　obviouslv
　　　　　　　　　　’　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　i
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niaintained　ties　to　his　former　emplo｝’er．　N．lacmillan、、・ere　to　publish　the　111a．ior－

ity　of　S．　tein’s　books．　The　relations　hip　got　off　to　a　bulnPy　start・with　problelns

c〔〕ncerlling　Stein’s　Ruin∫qf　Desert　（Jatlia＞・，　published　b｝・Macmillan　in　1912．　In

aletter　to　Keltie，　George　A．　Macmillan　expressed　concern　about　the　success　ot

the　book　and　attested　to　the　influence　Stein　had．　He　remarked　that、“we　are

proし1d　to　publish（it）and　I　only　hope　that　the　solnewhat　excessi、・e　size、　which

the　author　persuaded　us　to　adopt，　may　not　interfenAe　with　its　sales・”4s　Nlaclllillan

were　rlgllt　to　be　concerned　as　the　len　q．　th　ofthe　book　meant　it　was　issued　il〕two

volulnes　of　1，000　pages　and　350　photographs，　plates　and　nlaps　．49

　　　Prepai・atioll　for　the　publicatioll　of　the　book　caused　Keltie　and　N　｛acniillan

llulllerous　headaches　as　there　were　mally　misしinderstandings　collcerllillg　the

cost　of　us．　ing　Stein’s　maps　that　the　RGS　had　rights　to．　In　Niay　l911，Keltie　asked

Stein　ifan　agreelne1コt　was　reached　oll　paper　with，N・lacmillan　about　their　payillg

£or　the　use　of　the　maps．　Although　Keltie　stated　he　remembered　a　discuss．　ion

about　the　issue、　he　had　llo　correspondence　about　it　but　believed　the　sum　ot£40

was　agreed．50　Steil〕agreed　with　himsi　and　a　bill　was　sellt　to　Nlacniillan．　How－

ever，　the　bill　that　was　sent　to，N　lac　in　illan　was　ti〔）r£70、　all　amoullt　that　the　pub－

lisher　expressed　surprise　ul／）oll　receiving．52　1n　a　rather　tersely　svOI・ded　reply、　sellt

〈）11e　dav　later，　Keltie　informed　Nlacmillall　that　the　RGS　had　spent£250　in　pre一
　　　　　　　　　ノ

paring　S　tein’s　111a　ps　and　ha、・ing　discussed　the　lnatter　with　S　tein、　had　agreed　that

the　sulll　of£．40、、・as　acceptable．　However、　sillcc　the　RGS　had　given．NlacniiHan

pel・nnisS．　iOll　to　use　the　Illaps，　it　was　felt　that　they　should　als．　o　bear　part（ハf　the

cost．　As　for　the　illcrease　ill　the　amount　Keltie　ex　plained　it　thus：

XVith　regard　to　the　charge、　the£40　is　a　sn〕all　pl’oPortion　of　the　cost　of　lithograph－

ing　the　Illaps　and　the　other£30　is　a　small　proPortion　of　the　cost　of　drawillg　the

Illaps　by　our　Illen　here，　who　werc　ellgaged　for　g．　onnething　like　a　year　c）ll　thc　w〔）rk．

A・the・e　is・・w・ittetl　ag・cement・f・the　matter　1　mug．　t　leave　it　t・y・・r　sense・f農｜ir－

ness　t・d・・l　with　it・s　y・u　c・・sider　l’ight．53

　　In　an　equally　quick　reply、　Macmillan　agreed　to　pay　the　full　anコount・colll－

111entillg　thus：“much　therefore　as　we　regret　thc　Ilecessity　ofadding　another£70

to　the　ah・eady　serious　expense　of　prodしlcillg　Dr．　Stein’s　bo（）k．”：，41n　a　concilia－

tolT　Ietter、　Keltie　replied　t〈）Ma（：millan，“I　doubt　that　any　other　Pしiblisher　would

have　dealt　with　him　as　handsonnelv　as　vou　have　done．”　And　he　wellt　on　to
’　　　　　　　　　　　‘

melltion　a　Col．　Carruthers、　who　had　recentlv　returned　froin　l　8　nnonths　i11（len一
　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　ン

tral　Asia　and　been　approached　by　several　pllblishers．　But　after　he（Keltie）told
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　　　　　Srein　and　the　Ro｝’al　Geographical　Socicty　1901－1943，（Twn．1正Y）

hiln　how　wel1，N　lac［nillan　had　treatcd　Stein、　Carruthers　also　wallted　to　be｝／）　Llb－

Iished　by　them．55　’1”hei・e　were　llo　d〈）ubt　other　explorers　who　soし1ght　recolnlnel1－

dations　to　publis　hers．　，　so　it　was　likely　that　Keltie　and　Nlacmillall　recognized　the

illlportallce　oflllaintainillg　a　cordial　relations1〕ip．

　　　Stein’s“magllしmM　opus，”56　as　Keltie　called　it，　was　l）ublished　in　lgl2aiid　illi－

tially・N　iacinillanゴs　concel’lls　s．　eenied　justifiec／1．　The　large　size　and　cost〈）f　the

book　meallt　slow　sales，　Stein　mentioned　to　Keltie　in　NIarch　that　he　has　received

aletter　froln　Macmillan、　which“complaiii（s）ofthe　limited　sale　which　the　book

had　ill　the　nrst　Few　weeks　，　but　expresses　the　hope　that　this　will　niend　whell　the

leadillg　papers　will　have　devoted　some　attention　t（）it。”57　No　doubt　Steilゴs　un－

derlilling　was　done　ill　the　hopc　that　Keltie，　with　his　illtluellce　at　7フ］c　Ti〃1cs

wouId　review　the　book　favorablv．　This　seelns　to　ha、・e　been　the　case，　for　iust　a
‘　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　・

few　moiiths　Iater（ill，N　lav），　S　tein　wrote　that　the　reviews　ofthe　book‘‘have　been
　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　イ

very　gratifS’ing　especially　the　one　ill　The　7’imes∵”5s　Despite　the　early、　sIow　sales，

the　book　went　olコto　be　a　great　success　as　call　be　seen　from　Keltie’s　remarks：Lt　I

also　ought　to　have　congratulated　you（）n　the　ilnn〕ense　success　of　your　book．　1

11ever　saw　such　a　series　of　superlatively　laudatc）ry　notices　as　have　apPeared　ill

the　preSS．”59

MORE　REQUESTS

、Vhen　Stein　needed　help　he　asked　anyolle　he　thought　nlight　be　of　use．　And　he

tended　to　ask　repeatedlyしmtil　he　gc）t　what　he　wanted、　as　Whitfield　describes　it、

“ His　Inain　tactic、、’as　unrelenting　pressure　　although　always　politely　applied－

which　tie“T，　in　the　end，　could　svithstand．”60　1nitially、　his　requests　to　Keltie　were

fbr　matters　directly　related　to　the　RGS　such　as　printillg　extra　copies　ofhis　l902

paper；611istil19　People　to　wholn　he、、・anted　presentatioll　copies　of　his　book　of

panoralnas　sellt　t（）62　alld　informatioii　regardillg　nnaps　ofareas　he　was　interested

in．63　And　like　mall＞r　other　explorers　he　also　asked丘）r　the　loan　of　equipment．

　　　The　RGS　oftell　aided　explorers　by　lending　thenl　eqし1iplllellt　and　g．　cienti　fic

instrulnents　that　they　could　not　other、vise　have　affbrded．　Often　their　grants

did　not　cover　all　their　requirenlents．　As　Stein　hilnself　stated、　the　grallt　he　re－

ceived丘oln　the　British　Niuseu111　fbr　his　second　expedition　was　c‘b＞・no　nコealls

extravagant”64　and　he　requested　the　Ioan　of　a　few　sinlple　instrulnents．　Eight

lnonths　later、　closer　to　the　date　of　Stei1ゴs　departure　Keltie　agreed　to　loan　the
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instrulnents　they　had　in　stock．　However，　due　to　the　large　number　of　requests

he　had　received　at　that　time，　he　was　unsure　if　they　could　fUl丘ll　Stein’s　require－

ments．65　Keltie　Inust　ha、・e　been　able　to　meet　Steiゴs　request　as　just　be石ore　Stein’s

third　expedition　he　asked　fbr　the　loan　of　the　san〕e　equipnlent，　which　included

‘‘the　handy　h＞1）someter　and　a　good　half二chronometer　watch・”66　Since　his　sec－

ond　expedition　had　been　so　lucky　he　felt　using　the　same　illstrulllents、vould　be

“ akind　ofauspicious　omen．）’Keltie　subsequently　agreed　to　the　k）an．6フ

　　By　1909、　Stein　had　returned廿om　his　very　successfUl　second　expedition　and

was　awarded　the　RGS　Founder’s　MedaL　His　requests　to　Keltie丘on〕this　time

became　n〕ore　numerous　and　detailed　and　in　February　l909，　he　sent　Keltie　a

long　list　ofpeople　whom　he　wanted　invited　to　the　presentation，　He　also　i、・anted

Keltie　to　approach　some　of　the　people　on　the　list　to　ask　them　to　say　a　few

words．68　Three　months　later，　he　asked　Keltie’s　opinion　about　accepting　an　il1、・i．

tation　from　the　Cardiff　Sociew　and　i1〕五）rmed　him　he　had　received　invitations
　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　ぼ
仕om　Cambridge　UIliversity，　some　scientific　societies　in　the　north　of　England

and　abroad　and　that　he　was　considering　a　lecture　tour　in　October．　He　stated　he

would　like　to　go　to　Scotland　but　first　asked　ifKeltie　would、‘‘sound　the　ground

there　if　you　thought　that　desirable．”69　1t　is　possible　that　Stein　felt（）verwheln〕ed

by　the　acclaim　that　fOllowed　his　return仕orn　the　second　expeditioll．　As　men－

tioned　earlier，　he　was　a　rather　shy　Inan　and　to　be　flooded　with　invitations　nlust

have　been　diflflcult　for　him．　Steill　probably　though　Keltie　would　be　more　knowl－

edgeable　about　whicl〕invitatiolls　would　be　suitable　to　accept．　This　request　fbr

Keltieツs　opinion　does　show　how　much　Stein　trtlsted　Keltie　to　steer　him　in　the

right　direction．　He　accepted　the　invitations　to　give　lectures　ill　Cal⊃〕bridge　and

Scotland，70　perhaps　due　to　Keltie’s　recommendation．

　　The　publication　ofthe　speech　he　gave　at　the　presentation　gave　rise　to　a　num－

ber　of　requests廿om　Stein．　He　was　ver＞・clear　about　how　he　wanted　the　speech

printed，　In　Iune　l　909．　he　stated　he　wanted　〔‘the　whole　of　my　paper　to　apPear　ill

the　July　number　of　the　geographical　journal・’》71　0nly　nineteen　days　later　he

returned　the　proofS　of　his　speech　to　Keltie　and　again　requested　it　be　brougl〕t

out　ill　one　issue，72　which　it　was．

　　Soon　afモer　the　speech　was　published，　Stein　still　had　Inore　requests　fbr　Keltie．

In∫uly，　he　asked丘）r　200　copies　of　his　paper，100　more　than　he　had　originally

asked　fbr，　but　which　he　would　pa｝・fbr．73　Later　in　l911，he　asked　Keltie　to　send

copies　of　the　paper　to　the　N4anchester　Geographical　Society　and　fu　rther　he

wanted　200　reprints　of　the　maps　and　notes　instead　of　the　100　he　had　requested
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［Note］An　Examination　of　thc　Corresporlderlce　betweerl　Sir　Marc　Aurel

　　　　Stein　and　the　Roya1　Geographical　Sodety　1901－1943．（TwrLLFY）

which　were　to　be　sent　to　those　same　people　to　whonT　copies（）f　the　speech　had

been　sent．74　Reprinting　the　Inaps　howe、rer，　proved　to　be　difficult．　Stein，　who

wasしlsed　to　gettin9、、・hat　he　wanted，　suggested　that　copies　could　be　taken　fior

the　RGS　journal　and　then　replaced　when　the　Inaps、、・ere　reprillted　fbr　his　book

to　be　published　by　N．lacmillan　later　in　the｝・ear．75　Keltie　fbrtunately　managed　to

find　50　extra　maps　and　took　500ut　of　the　RGS’s　journal，　which　were　to　be　re－

placed　later．76　Problems　with　these　Inaps　occurred　again，　as　mentioned　above，

whell　the　publisher，　NMacmillan　sought　to　use　them．

PEOPLE　AND　PERSONAGES

One　of　the　most　interesting　aspects　of　the　correspondence　betsveen　Stein　and

Keltie　is　the　rlumber　of、vell－known　figures　who　were　lnentioned　in　their　letters

and　the　two　lnen’s　opinions　about　these　people，　Stein　would　probably　have

met　nユany　of　them　at　the　RGS　dinners　and　monthlハ・meetings．　In　the　initial

stages　of　their　correspondence，　there　are　brief　references　to　some　nlutual　ac－

quaintances，　but　as　time　goes　on，　personal　opinions　on　such　people　begin　to

creep　illto　their　letters．

Sven　Hedin（1865－1952）

Keltie　tried　to　keep　Stein　up　to　date　on　what　was　happening　at　the　RGS　and　also

to　infbrn〕hiln　ofwhat　his　rivals　were　up　to．　Stein　was　very　concerned　that　oth－

ers　would　beat　him　to　the　sites　he　was　interested　in．　One　important“rival”was

Sven　Hedin，　an　intrepid　geographer丘om　Sweden．　Hopkirk　in　his　book，　For－

eigfl　Dei・i『50fl　the　Silk　Road，　describes　Hedin　as“the　Pathfinder”770f　Central

Asia．　In　1899，　Hedin　discovered　the　ancient　Chinese　garrison　town　of　Lou－lan．

Hedin’s　early　explorations　ofthe　Silk　Road　were　an　important　source　of　infor－

n〕ation　fbr　Stein　when　he　was　planning　his　first　expedition．　Stein　took　notes　of

the　geography　Hedin　described　and　the‘‘Turkestan　words五）r　the　various　items

he　would　need　to　buy　and　the　names　of　the　men　engaged　by　Hedilゴ’78　How－

ever，　Stein　believed　that　Hedin，　beillg　primarily　a　geographer，　was　insu笛ciently

qualified　to　understand　the　importance　ofthe　buried　Silk　Road　towns．

　　Keltie　f五rst　mentioned　Hedin　in　a　letter　to　Stein　in　1906　when　Stei1パ、・as

preparing　fbr　his　second　expedition　to　Chinese　Turkestan．　It　was　during　this

expedition　that　he　was　to丘nd　his　mostねmous　discovery，　the　Cave　of　the
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Thousand　Buddhas．　From　this　cave　he　removed　thousands　ofalicielit　pailltings

and　Inanuscripts　i1〕cluding　the　oldest　kllown　printed　book，　the　1）i‘1〃ro〃d　Slttr‘1，

which　is　oll　perll）1111ellt　display　ill　the　British　Nluseun1．

　　Keltie，　in　that　lettet’to　Steh1，　updated　hinl　as　to　which　explorers　were　inter－

ested　in　Turkestan．　He　nientioned　that　two　Aniericans　Nvere‘“at　pres．　ent　at　work

partly　on　your　old　tield”and　that　Hedin　was　also（m　his　way　to　Central　Asia，

He　xvent　on　to　reassしlre　S．　tein　by　telling　hiin　that　he”believes　he（Hedin）illtends

to　coll釦1e　his　work　mainly　to　Tibet　and　by　the　time　he　gets　there　he　lnay　find

he　has　been　to　s〈）me　extent　fo　restalled，”79　Hedin　xvas　evidentlv　m（）re　succeg．　sful
‘

than　Keltie　had　expected　as　in　l　907　he　wrote　to　Steill、“I　had　a　long　letter　froln

Sven　Hedin　the　othcr　day．卜le　has　been　careering　all　over　Tibet，　and　as　usual

is　ver｝・full　of　the　fact　that　lle　has　done　solne　hundreds　of　g．　heets　of　lnaps　and

some　thousands〈）fpages　of　iiotes　．”80’rhe　tone　of　Keltie’s　letter　is　imeresting　as

he　clearly　disapproved　of　Hedin．　　Hedin　was　〔）ften　accused、　by　his

contelnPoraries、　of　nnaking　his　reports　souiid　like　adventure　stories．　Stein　and

Hedin　were　imnal〕y　ways　vel下similar．　Both“・ere　short，　compact　nlell　happy

to　trudge　hundreds　〈）f　miles　and　they　both　s．　eemed　to　bc　most　at　home　ill

extreme　ellvironn〕ents．　There　was　however，　according　to　Hopkii・k、“one

fUndamental　difference　between　them．　Stein　was　a　brilliant　orientalist　wh（ハ

turned　to　exploration　to　collfirm　certain　theories　he　had　about　what　lay　bui・ied

on　China’s　back　of　beyolld　．．．　Hedin，　a　highly　trained　geographer　and

cartographer　was　an　explorer　pure　and　Silllple．”81

　　　1n　Iuly　1908、9．　tein　expressed　concern　that　nothing　has　been　heard　froiii

Hedin．　He　infc）rmed　Keltie　that　there、、・ere　many　letters　a、、・aiting　Hedin　ill

Koshgar　and　the　British　I’eprcsentative　”NlcCarthy　thinks　there　is　cause　for

allxie“’．”82　However、　those　fセars　were　unfbunded，　as　ill　Novelnber　Keltie　ill－

fornned　Stein　that　both　his　own　recellt　report　and　Hedinゴs　accoullt　of　his．ioUl・－

lle｝r　to　Tibet　inclしlding　dhis“sensational　discoveries”）83　would　be　published　ill

the　RGS．ioui’nal．　Hedin　had、　despite　British　and　Tibetan　disappro、・al　cntcrcd

Tibet　and　explored　the　S　outhern　and、㌧アestern　regions．　He（：laimed　discovery　of

a　previously　unknosvn　nlalor　m（）ulltaill　range，　the　source　of　the　Inajor　Soしlth

Asian　rivers　and　he　had　nlet　the　Panchen　I．anna．

　　　Hedin　was　next　mentioned　when　Keltie　asked　Stein　to　niake　commellts　oll

Hedin’s　paper　for　thc　RGS　lourlla1．　S　teiii　declined、　stating　he　could　llot　com－

Inellt　on　the　paper　as　it　was“beyond　my　sphere．”84　1t　is　interestillg　that　Stei11，

who　had　relied　oll　Hedin’s　reports　and　111aps　to　guide　him　across　Asia、　did　n（）t
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wish　to　colnnlellt　on　Hedh1’s　ptlPe1－．　The　reverse、vas　not　true　as　Keltie　asked

Hedin　to　review　S．　tein’s　paper　h）r　the　RGS．iouriial，　and　S．　teill　later　thanked　him

for　forwarding　Hedin’s　remarks．85

　　　The　last　rcfcrence　to　Hedin　occurred　wllen　Stein　mentioned　he　had　fbしund　a

tape　Ineasure　Hedin　had　left　ill　the　ruins　at　Lou－lan　ill　1901．86　The　tape　lneas－

ure　had　remahledしmt（）uched　at　the　site　until　Stein　foしind　it．　He　was　able　to

retum　it　t〈）Hedin　ill　pel－S．　Oll　at　amnfi）rmal　din　ner　at　the　RGS　ill　l909．87

Ellsworth　Huntington（1876－1947）

Another　explorer　whom　Stein　admii・ed　was　Ellsworth　Hulltington，88　an　Ameri－

can　geograpller．　S．　teill　fi　rs　t　111et　him　in　l　904　ill　Peshawar．　They　Inet　agaill　in

l905　when　Humtingtoii　informed　S　teiii　ofthe　prc）gress　oll　his　pa！loralllas．8g　In

one　letter　S　teiii　nientioned　how　he　adniired　the　wa》・Huntington’Lmoves　around

with　a　MilliMUm　ofpeople　alld　baggage．”90　Tllis　ofcours．　e、　was　very　Inしlch　the

way　Stcin　hilnself　liked　to　travel，　wlth　just　a　fex、・men　and　his　terrier、　Dash．

Even　at　the　age　of　52，　S．　teill　reniarked　he　was“keepillg．　f，t　and　fully　elljoyed　the

tralnps　ofhundi’eds　of　miles．”91　Stein　also　expressed　his　high　opilliOll　of　Hunt－

illgton’s　skills　as　a　researchel・and　that　it、vas　only　ill　hist（）rical　matters　that　he

showed　occasionally’‘all　inclination　to　take　a｝）ost　hoc　fbr　proof　of　a　propter

hoc．”92　As　Huntiiigt（ハn　was　a　geographer　rather　than　a　historian　by　profession，

it　is　perhaps　not　sしlrPrising　that　lle　did　llot　I1〕eet　Steilゴs　high　standards　in　that

particular　area．　In　1907、　Hul）tilltJtOII　published　The　Pitise　of　A．Siia　based　oll　his

exploration　of　Chillese　Turkesta11．　It、vas　a　very　well　received　book，　willnillg

medals　fl－（ハm　the（；eographical　Socieり・of　Paris　and　the　Harvard　Travelers　Club．

Keltie　mellti〔）ned　the　book　to　Stein　and　suggested　he　might　do　a　similar　work．93

Stein　had　ill　fact　alreadv　ol・dered　the　book94　and　no　doubt　read　it．　However，
　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　i

when　asked　to　re、rie、v　it　by　Keltie、　he　declined　clailning　he　had　no　time．95　1t

was　also　at　this　time　that　Stein　refused　to　review　a　report　by　Hedin．　Durillg

this　period　he　was　in　fact　oll　leave　ill　Europe、　working　oll　his　collection　at　the

British　N・　Iuseuni　and　giving　lectures　ill　several　countries．　．　In　the　early　lnonths　of

l909，　he　was　also　preparillg　to　give　a　lecture　at　the　RGS　ab（）ut　his　second　Inajor

expedition　to　Chinese’rしlrkestan　so　perhaps　he　was　indeed　too　busy　to　do　ally－

thing　else．
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Count　Otani

Anumber　of　letters　ill　the　archive　are　concerned　with　a　19081apalコese　expedi－

tiolエAlthough　there　had　been　an　earlier∫apanese　expedition　to　Central　Asia　in

1902，it　had　gone　relatively　unnoticed　and　unremarked．　But　by　1908　the　situa－

tion　in　the　region　had　changed：the　death　ofthe　Manchu　Dowager　Empress　that

year　had　created　a　po、、℃r　vacuuln　that　would　result　in　the　1911Peking　Revolu－

tioll．　The　major　European　powers－Russia，　Germany，　France　and　Britain－

sought　to　seize　the　opPortuniB’to　maintain　and　expand　their　power　in　the　area．

Iapan　was　a　relatively　new　power　on　the　scene．　It　had　only　been　with　the　l905

Russo－lapanese、Var　that　the　Eしlropean　powers　had　been　forced　to　recognize

Iapan　as　a　ma．ior　player　in　Asia．　In　this　hotl｝・colltested　area　tllere　was　wide－

spread　suspicion　（including　among　Chinese　officials）of　any　explorers　or　ar－

chaeologists　who　coしIld　so　easily　be　spies．

　　As　was　mentioned　earlier，　Stein　himselfwas　aware　of　the　importallce　of　his

survev　work　and　his　lovalties　lav　firmlv　with　the　British．　It　was　into　this　clinユate
i　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　4　　　　　　　　　　　 ・　　　　　　　　　4

of　suspicion　that　a　Iapanese　expedition　was　sent　to　collect　Buddhist　artifacts

（and　bring　them　back　to　Iapan）．　The　expedition　was　organized　by　Count　Kozしli

Otani　who　was　the　head　ofamonastery　ofthe　Bし1ddhist“Jodo　Shinzu”or“Pure

Land”sect　based　ill　Kvoto．
　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　プ

　　Count　Otani　has　proved　to　be　a　rather　ambiguous　figure．　He　was　a　Iapanese

aristocrat，　brother－in－1aw　to　the　Meili　Emperor　and　a　published　author．　Al－

though　head　of　a　monastery、　he　was　according　to　Hopkirk，“llot　an　unworldl｝・

cleric　who　spent　his　life　ill　prayer　and　conternplation．”96　1t　was　a　role　he　inher－

ited　on　the　death　of　his　father．　Befbre　returning　home　to　assume　the　leadership，

he　spent　lnuch　time　traveling　in　Europe　and　elsewhere．　He　was　also　a　Fellow　of

the　RGS．　He　was　thought　by　many　Westerners　to　be　a　spymaster；certainly　the

behavior　of　the　monks　he　sent　to　China　was　rather　suspicious．97　He　funded

three　exped量tiOnS　tO　Central　ASia，　whiCh　garnered　him　many　treaSUreS．　ACCOrd－

illg　to　Hopkirk，　Otanゴs　collection、、・as　the“third　largest　collection　to　be　re－

moved丘om　Chinese　Central　Asia．”98　The　expeditions　almost　bankrupted　him

and　he　was　fbrced　to　dispose　of　mしlch　of　his　collection，　a　large　proportion　of

which　has　never　been　found．

　　As　early　as　l902，0tani　had　heard　of　Steilゴs　fmdings　and　had　sent　monks　to

sites　around　Taklamakan．　They　found　some　texts，　paintings　and　sculptures、

which　they　brought　back　to　Iapan．　Their　expedition　was　not　thought　to　be　of

much　significance　at　the　time、　as　they　did　not　publish　their　results．
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［Note］AII　Exalninatiol〕ofthe　Corrcspondcncc　bc“veen　Sir　Marc　Aurel

　　　　　Stellund　the　Royal　Geographical　SocicB・1901－1943．（『「wH．LE、『）

　　However、　the　1908　expedition　was　viewed　with　much　m（⊃re　suS．　PiCiOll　due　to

the　change　ill　the　political　situatioll．　The　British　had　the　nnonks　followed　for

niuch　of　their，i（）urney　and　the　Russians、　humiliated　by　theirdefieat　at　the　hands

of　the　Japaiiese，　were　convinced　that　Otani’s　monks　were　spies　and　that　the

Japanese　wel’e　tryillg　to　extend　their　sphere　of　intluence．　Altl〕ough　Stein　does

I）ot　appear　to　have　suspected　them　of　espionagehe　was　worried　that　they　would

get　to（；hinese　Turkestaii　be　fo　re　him．　He　was　howevel・、　more　concerned　about

aRussian　and　possibly　a　German　expedition　to　the　s．1・IIIe　area．　In　his　proposal

to　the　Indian　aし1thorities　for　his　second　MajO1“expedition、　he　stressed　the　need

for　has　te　as　conlpetition　xvas　a　s　erious　threat　and　asked　for　early　approval　of　his

plans．‘‘Chillese　Turkestan　is　not　like　Eg）？t　a　great　storehouse　of　things　of　the

pas．　t、”he　insisted、“its　sites　ofimportance　are£ar－scattered　alid　for　the　most　part

quickly　exhausted．”99

　　　1n　1910，　Stein　was　ill　England　when　he　received　a　report　of　the　Japanese　ex＿

pedition．　Count（）talli　had　sellt　it　to　the　RGS　fbr　considerati（）11　for　publication

in　the　socieB・’sjoしirnal　and　Keltie　had　f（）rwarded　it　to　Stein　foi－his　opillion．　The

expedition　had　been　led　by　one　of　Otanゴs　monks、　Zuicho　Tachibana・　Stein

expressed　his　interest　in　the　route　taken　by　the　mollks．　alld　the　work　of　the

youllg　Japanes．　e　scholars、　but　he　was　very　critical　of　the　report（，verall．　He　ex－

pressed　sympathy　for　Keltie，　as　it　was　Keltie　who　had　to　decide　what　to　do　with

the　report．　9．　teill　c（）ng．　idered　the　report　had　been　rather　crudely　compiled、　as

the　routes　taken　by　the　Japanese　were　not　Ilesv　and　there　was　really　no　purpose

to　publishing　it．　No　doubt　however，　S　teill　realized　the　RGS　did　wish　to　publish

solllethiIlg　by　the　nexvconners，　as　a　way　of　encoullagel）lellt、　so　he（）ffered　the

f・110willg　suggestions、

（It）is　desirable　to　get　an　exact　record　ofthe　placcs　he　visited　and　the　archaeological

results　claimed．　I　have　lnarked　ill　red　pen（：il　the　archaeological　illterestil19　passages

and　w〔｝uld　suggest　that　these　may　be　extracted　or　conden　g．　ed　if　llecessary・It　would

be　well　to　add　that　at　Turfan　svstenlatic　excavations　have　been　carried　oll　for　vears

by　Germall　expcdition⑨，　and　to　give　the　real　local　Ilames　I　have　Inarked　oll　the

margills　ill　order　to　facilitate　identification　of　the　places　liachibana　111eallS　but

from　olle　causc　ol・the　other　could　llot　nallle　correctlv．100
i

He　went　on　to　suggest　that　the　Iapanese　should　avail　thennselves　of　an　English

speaker　t・re・iew　the　rep・rt　c・mpletely・

　　Although　rather　dallmillg　of　the　report　itself，　Stein　did　wal〕t　to　encourage

the　Japanese　group．　A　nnonth　later　in　June　he　sellt　C〈）tmt　Otani　the　title　of　a
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Finnish　Academy’s　publication　ill　which　the　inscriptions　of　the　Orkhan　Valley

were　dis（：ussed（as　these　were　also　featured　at　length　ill　the　Iapanese　paper）．101

Althoし1gh　it　is　clear　Steill　did　not　have　a　very　high　opillioll　of　the　Jtipaliese　explor－

ers，　he　did　not　disiniss　them　as　irrelevant．　In　1912，　he　asked　Keltie　whether　he

had　heard　a　nythillg．　about　Tachiballa（、、・ho　had　been　back　to　the　Tarim　Basin　ill

lgll｝adding　that　he、vould　like“to　get　details　about　Tachibana’s　doings　and

（）nly　wish　that　he　will　produce　ill　the　end　some　accurate　record．”iO2　Stein　was　in

the　process　of　plamling　his　third　expedition　to　Turkestan　and　was　c（）ncerned

with　the　threat　of　c（）lllpetitiOll　from　the　Japanese　and　the　Russians　who　had　re－

cently　been　in　the　area．　Keltie　replie（］he　had　received　a　letter　from　Count　Otani

about　Tachibana’s　jOLII‘11eY，　which　he　prolnised　to　forward　to　Steil1．　Keltie“tellt

on　to　express　his　als（）rather　low　opinion　of　the　Iapanese　explorer’s　nlethodology

whell　he　stated，“lf　the＞r　are　llot　Inol’e　intelligibly　written　that　the　a（：coUIIt　ofhis

previous．iourney　l　am　afraid　I　shall　Iw）t　be　able　to　make　ally　use　of　them．”lo3

　　Tachiballa　nnust　have　heeded　the　advice　he　had　been　given、　as　by　October、

．Stein　wrote　to　Keltie；“I　alnΣ三三X　glad　that　there　is　hope　ofTa（：hibana’s　account

being　put　in　the　j〈）しirnal．　There　is　real　need　of　s（）me　record　of　his　doin　g．　s．”104

After　this　last　comlllent　bv　Stein　there　was　no　further　nlelltiOll　C）f　Tachibana　in
i

his　letters．　However　his　tears　regarding　the　methodology　ofthe　Japanese　seem

to　have　been　lustined．　In　lgl4，　Stein　wcllt　to　Miran　to　coiiiplete　the　retrieval　of

solne　frescos　he　had　failed　to　do　ill　1908．　Although　he　had　refilled　the　excava－

tion　site，　the　fresc〈）s　had　been　found　and‘’crudelv　hacked”〈）ut，　Itwas　obvious
　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　’

solneone　had　rcad　his　reports　and　found　theni．　Stein　was　ill　n〈）doubt　as　to

wholn　that　person　was．　［1〕alecture，　he　gave　nnuch　later　inl933、　S．　teill　described

that　person　as　Lta　y（）ung　Japanese　traveler　who　lacked　preparatioll，　technical　skilI

and　experience　equal　to　his　archaeolo　g．　ical　zeal”，ios　nainel）・Tachibana．

Capt，　Robert　Scott（1868－1912）

Stein　was　interested　Ilot　just　in　people　fr（）m　his　chosen　field　of　Central　Asiall

s　tudies．　but　also　in　explorers　ofother　areas、　X．Vhen　ilコLondon　Steinwould　often

go　to　the　RGS　to　attend　meetillgs　where　he　would，　mturally，　Ineet　other　mem－

bers．　This　was　how　he　fil’st　nlet　Capt．　Robcrt　Falc（m　Scott　ill　I　904．　Scott　was　to

die　in　lgl2　ill　a　failed　attempt　to　reach　the　Soしlth　Pole　be　fo　re　the　Norwegian

explorer　Roald　iKiiiulidseii　（1872－1928）．　The　circunlst2111ces　surrounding　his

death　were　to　raise　him　to　the　status　of　tragic　hero，　a　status　he　still　retains　in

Britain　even　todav．
　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　’
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［Note］An　Examination　ofthe　Correspondenee　betrveen　Sir　Marc　Aurel

　　　　Steln　and　the　Royal　Geographical　Society　1901－1943．（TwlLLEY）

　　The　first　111elltioll　ofScott　is　ill　N．lal’ch　l　913whell　Steil1、vas　preparing　fo1・his

third　exped｛tion，　He　explained　to　Keltie　that　as　he　was　fairly　isolated　in　Sl－ina－

gar，　he　had　just　heard　abouピ’Captaill　Scotゼs　tragic　fate．”　Stein　wrote　that　the

Few　tilnes　he　had　Inet　Scott　he　had　felt“all　the　Ilobility，　the　classic　greatlless　of

his　character”、　and　he　went　oll　to　sav　he　would　send　a“inodes．　t　suln”106　fヒ）r　the
‘

1nemorial　fUnd　the　RGS　had　established．　He　received　a　quick　reply丘om　Keltic

lust　olle　mollth　later　th：mking　him　for　the　money．　Keltie　infornied　Stein　that

part　ofthe　fUnd　was　to　be　used　to　build　a　hall　at　the　RGS　to　be　named‘‘Scott

Hall．”The　fUndしlp　to　that　pOillt、　amoullted　to£60、000　raised丘oln　the　pub－

lic、io7　an　indication　of　how　pc）pular　Scott　had　bec〈）1ne．　Keltie　lnust　have　liked

Stein’s　letter　as　he　said　he　wollld　send　extracts　to　Scotピs　I11（）ther．

　　By　July，　there　seems　to　have　been　a　change　in　the　purpose　ofthe　fund．　Keltie

infbrlned　Stein　that　the　fLlnd　had　reached£80，000　and　part　would　be　used　to

provide　for　the　widows　of　the　nlenユbers　of　the　failed　expedition；£1ス500　for

Publication　of　the　scientific　results；and　the　rest　for　a　Inemorial，　probably　a

statue．　No　allocation　of　funds　was　Inade　for　the　”Scott　Hal1．”However，　since

the　RGS　had　just　moved　to　new　prelnises　at　Kensington　it　planned　to　sell　solne

Iand　adloining　the　house．　About£40、000　was　expected　to　be　raised廿oln　the

sale　ofthe　land，　which　would　go　to　the　building　ofthe　halLlo8

Ernest　Shackleton（1874－1922）

Another　Antarctic　explorer　who　is　mentioned　in　the　letters　is　Ernest　Hem’y

Shackleton　who　followed　in　the　fbotsteps　of　Amundsen　and　Scott　to　the　South

Pole，　VVhile　Keltie　did　not　think　Shackleton’s　expeditien　had　Inuch　valしle，　he

was　sympathetic　to　his　need　to　gain　fUnds　and　keep　the　publiごs　interest．　Keltie

wrltes、

Personally　I　do　not　think　very　much　about　crossing　the　continent．　One　half　of　it

will　no　doubt　be　llelv　but　thc　other　half　will　be　over　old　lines　traversed　bv　hiniself

and　Scott　and　Alnulldson、　but　S　hackleton　adniits　that　he　had　got　to　do　soinething

to　catch　the　ear　of　the　pしlbl▲c　and　to　get　them　to　open　their　pUrses．　One　big　Dun－

dce　manufacturer　has．iust　gi、・en　him£24、000．　He　must　have£50、0000r£6（）、Ooo

already，　still　he　wants　more．　I　hope　hewill　do　good　work　apart　altogether　from　the

fieat・f　Cr・SSing　the　C・litinent．i°9

It　is　illteresting　ho、、・clear　his　opillioll　about　Shackleton　is　in　this　letter．　入lany

of　the　letters　of　this．　latter　period　are　franker　and　soniewhat　more　gossipy　shox・v－

ing　that　Steill　and　Keltie　l〕ad　reached　a　lnore　inti111ate　level（）f　correspondencc
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They　had　been　writil〕g　to　each　other£or　about　thirteen　years　at　t1〕is　l）oint．

　　In　this　sanle　lollg　letter　Keltie　wrote　about　a　recent　meeting　held　at　the　RGS．

He　melltioned　in　particular　ts、u　of　the　speakers　Rud｝・ard　Kiplillg　and　Theo－

dore　Roosevelt，　the　26tll　President　ofthe　United　States．

Rudyard　Kipling（1865－1936）

Rudyard　Kipling’s　father，　Iolm　Lockwood　Kipling（1837－1911）was　a　lilUollg

friend　of　Stein’s．　They　had　met　during　Stein’s　early）・ears　in　India．　Lockwood

Kipling　had　gone　to　Lahore　ill　l　875　to　take　up　the　dual　positions　of　I）rincipal　of

the　Mavo　School　ofArt　and　Curator　ofthe　newlv　established　museun1，　He　was
‘　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　’

a　recognized　expert　on　Gralldharan　art　and　had　much　to　share　with　Steill，

Rudyard　Kipling　had　left　IIldia　the　year　Stein　arrived．

　　Keltie，1）o　doubt　aware　of　Stein’s　friendship　with　the　hmily　MelltiOllS．　that

Rudyard　gave　a　talk　at　the　society　entitled“Some　Aspects　ofTravel”．　Collsider－

illg　the　witty　and　stirrillg　prose　fbr　l、Thich　Rudyard　Kipling　was　I・enoxvned、　his

talk　was　surprisingly　disappoilltillg．　Keltie　commented　it　was‘’quite　all　inter－

estillg　and　alllus．　illg　paper、　but　unfortunately　he　is　a　very　bad　orator，　and　I　alll

afraid　only　a　small　proportic）n　of　the　peoPle　ill　the　Queen’s　Hall　heard　him：

even　we　on　the　platform　had　very　great　difficulb・in　hearillg　what　he　had　to

say”・llo　Stein，　ill　reply、　is　1110re　positive　about　the　Kipling　lecture　sayillg　it

“ sounds　fascinatill　g．’”and”once　again　as　so　nlally　of　his　writings、　recalls　to　nle

his　father　who　I　was　f（）rtullate　to　know、vell　dllring　nly　Lahore　days．”111

Theodore　Roosevelt（1858－1919）

Keltie　was　evell　less　complimentary　ofthe　second　speaker，　Theodore　Roosevelt

who　gave　a　talk　about　a　tributary　to　the　Medeira　River　that　he　had　discovered　in

South　Amerlca．　Although　a　much　Inore　exciting　speaker　than　Kipling．　，　Keltie　was

very　disapProving　ofhis　style、　as　he　commented、“Of　course　Roosevelt　is　Roo－

sevelt，　and　had　it　not　been　he　who　discovered　this　river、　probably　llo　fuss　would

have　been　iiiake　about　it．　Of　cours．　e　he　was　very　alnusillg．　The　geograph｝t　did

not　amount　to　ver）’much、　but　Roos．　evelt　himselfamoullts　to　a　great　deal．”n2

Lord　Curzon（1859－1925）

Frequently　mentk）ned　in　the　letters　was　Lord　Curzon．　He　was　olユe　of　the　pre－

eminent　and　influential　politicians　ofhis　day．　He　held　the　posts　ofUndersecre－

tary　f（）r　Foreign　Affairs（1895－1898）and　Undersecretar＞・f（）r　India（1898－1905）
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［N〈）te］Arl　Examinatic）n　of　the　Correspondence　benween　Sir　Marc　Aurcl

　　　　　Stein　and　the　Ro｝・al　Geographical　Societ｝・190ユーユ943．（TwlLLF．Y）

and　Vicerov　of　lndia．　He　had　traveled　widelv　in　Asia　and　wrote　several　books
　　　　　　　　　　　ン　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　る

on　Asia，　He　was　awarded　the　R（．：S’s　highest　hollor、　the　Gold　Medal，　in　l　895．　It

was　said　of　him　that　he　was　the　ablest　politician　of　his　tinle　llever　to　become

Prime．N　linister．

　　Steill　first　met　Curzon　in　l899　whell　he　was　visitillg　the　Puiiiab　having　just

taken　up　his　post　as　y’iceroy．　Steill　was　asked　to　show　hini　around　the　Lahore

Nlusellm　and，　of　coUI’sC、　he　seized　the　opportullit｝T　to　explain　to　Curzon　the

innportance　of　his　theories　regardillg、、・hat　lay　beyond　the　Karakoram．（］urzoll，

havillg　writtell　a　b（x）k　on　Central　Asia　was　interested　and　illstructed　the　Br・itis　h

Nlinistcr　ill　Peking　to　obtain　pernnission　for　Steill　to　enter　Chillese　Turkestan

via　the　Karakoraln　route．ii3　1n　1902、9．　teill　Inet　Curzon　agaill　and　enlisted　his

support　fbr　an　expedition　to　Bactria．　Curz（）ll　applied　to　the　Amir　of　Afghani－

stan　oll　Stein’s．　behalf，　but　the　Amir　refused　to　allow　Steill　ent1・v．
　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　イ

　　Afew　nionths　latel・Stein　heard　ofan　expedition　to　Tibet　that　was　supPorted

bv（］urzoll　and　decided　he　had　to　be　oll　it．　Steill　was　not　at　all　interested　in　the
d

expedition’s　real　purpose，　which　was　to　illlpress　tlle　Tibetans　with　the　power　of

Britain（in　the　hope　they　would　become　allies　of　the　British　rather　than　the　Rus－

sians）．　He　was　only　interested　that，“the　borderland　between　N．　Tibet　and

Nlol1901ia、vould　offξr　Inc　an　extensive　field　for　geographic　and　archaeological

exploration．”114

　　Stein　enlisted　Keitie’s　help　askillg　him　to　write　to　Cul－zOII　on　his　behalf　and

remarked　that　if　he　were　to　succeed　he　would“spare　no　effort　to　utilize　every

opportunity　for⌒、、・ork”．iis　Unfortunately、　the　melnbers　of　the　ex－

pedition　had　already　been　decided．　They　included　a　Mr．　XValsh、　who　had　stud－

ied　Tibetan　and　was　felt　to　be　of　more　use　than　Stein．　Steill　did　not　take　the

refusal　eas　ily　and　agaill　asked　Keltie　if　he　or　Sir　Clemellt　Markham　could　tl“T

and　collvince　Curzon　that　the“lndiaii　Office　could　with　advalltage　to　itself　em－

ploy　Ine　oll　tasks　more　ilnportant　and　useful　than　those　to　which　I　am　Put　at

present．”116

　　According　to　Walker，　Stein　reacted’‘bitterly　to　the　relectioll　of　his　plans　for

Tibet，　His　scepticism　collcerning　admillistrative　bodies　of　all　kinds　llow　reached

out　to　embrace　the　X’iceroy．”117　However、　this　was　n　ot　the　impression　given　ill

Stein’s　letters　in　the　RGS．　V、’hen　ill　1909，　Stein　was　to　give　a　Iecture　at　the　RGS

about　his　second　expeditic）ll　to　Tしirkestan　he　asked　in　his　Feb．17［h　letter，　that

Curzon　be　invited　as　he　had　supported　the　expedition．　Latei・ill　the　mollth　on

the　25th，　he　again　asked　if　Curzon　has　been　invited　and　if　it　woし11d　be　possible
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to　ask　him　to　say　a　few　words．　Although　he　had　little　patience　for　those　who

did　not　reco911ize　the　ilコlportallce　of　his　svork，　it　would　s．・eenl　he　did　not　count

Cul・zoll　anlong　those．　IIldeed、　he　seemed　to　exl）ress　sylnpathy　for　Curzon　in

his　effo　rts　to　reorganize　the　British　Niuseum　located　ill　South　Kellsillgton．　He

、vrote、

1，0rd　Cul’zon’s　views　regarding　the　Indian　Collection　at　South　｝〈etlS．　illgtOll　llelps　to

brillg　honie　the　diffrcult｝’with　which　any　effoi’t　to　ensure　scientific　orgallizatioll　by

experts　fior　ethnographic　collections　in　this　coしm亡ry　is　confl’onted．　Ionly　wish，　the

bigger　s．　cheme　which　is　in　his　Inind　ma）・prove　capable　of　realization　within　rca－

sonable　time．118

　　Curz〈）n　becanユe　President　ofthe　RGS　ill　I911．　The　last　mentiolコof　Cしlrzon

is　in　a　letter　in　1914froni　Keltie．　He　Inust　have　f（）und　the　energetic　Iord　hard　to

deal　as　is　evident　wllen　he　inforined　Stein　that　Curzoll　Nvas　to　retire　and　xvould

be　succeeded　by　Doしlglas　Freshfield．　Keltie’s　oPilliOll　1、・as　that　Freshfield、“・ould

inake　11・11　cxcellent　president“and　not　quite　so　pushing　as　his　prt’decessor．”iig

HELPERS

On　Steill’s　expeditions　he　was　accolnpallied　by　only　a　few　non－Eしlropeall　he！p－

ers　and　his　dog、　Dash．　He　preferred　to　travel　with　a　small　gr（）up、　of　which　he

was　the　leader．　As　mentioned　earlier、　Steill　planned　his　expeditiolls　xvith　me－

ticul・us　precisi・n　rather　like　militar｝・　campaigns．　Unlike　many・ther　cxpl・）rers

he　did　not　like　travelling　with　other　Eur（）peans．　He　did、　however，　form　close

bollds　with　his　helpers．　Nluch　ofhis　work　would　have　been　imPossible　without

their　aid　and　assistallce．　Steiii　did　recognize　their　importallcti　alld　insisted　on

the　names　ofhis　surveyors　being　printed　along　with　his　on　ally　Inaps、　which　the

RGS　did・Hc　also　tried　to　get　theni　grallts　and　awards　that　would　acknox、Tledy．e

theircOntributi（）ns．

　　　By　the　tilne　ofhis　first　mtl．iorexpedition、　Steill　had　surroしlnded　himselfwith　a

team　of　hardy　mell　like　himself．　His　surveying　assistant　was　a　Gurkha、　Ram

Sillgh、　who　due　to　his　high　caste　brought“ritllt　him　his　own　cook．　He　accom－

panied　9．　teill　on　the　first　and　second　expeditions　．　However、　duriiig　the　second

expedition、　he　began　to　suffer　fr〈）ln“rheumatic　attackg．’”i20　which　got　progres－

sivelv　worse．　In　his　lette1・of　June　18th、　S．　teill　described　the　fiiids．　he　inade　at　the

256 24　一



［Note］All　Examination　of　the　Corrcspondence　bcnvccn　Sir　Marc　Aurci

　　　　　Stein　and　the　Royal　Gcographical　SocieB・1901－1943．（TwH」」こY）

Cave　of　a　Thousand　Bし1ddhas．　These、、・ere　the　nlost　spectacular　of　his　career，

but　he　still　took　time　to　write　about　the　condition　of　Ram　Singh’s　rh巴lmatisln．

It　had　become　so　niuch　w（）rse　that　he　hoped　he　would　be　relieved　bc　fo　re　the

next　winter　calnpaign．121　Steill　was　instrumental　ill　gettill．g　Ram　Singh　awarded

the　RGS’s　Gill　Melココoria｜ill　I908122　ill　recognition　ofthe　surveying　he　had　done．

He　and　Ram　Singh　had、　during　the　expedition，　mapped　20，000　square　miles　of

afairly　unknown　region・The　hnportallce　ofthose　nlaps　is　clear，　for　even　today，

acc・rding　t・Walker、　they　are　still　in　use．i2S

　　　AS　Ram　Sillgh　WaS　preparillg　fOr　hiS　journey　back　tO　India　ill　OCtOber　I907，

his　replacement　Rai　Lal　Singh　arrived　ill　I）ecember，　Stein　described　him　as　a

“ splendid　malコ”124　who　had　started　life　as　a　trooper　alld　had　already　20　years

experience　of　dangerous．　surveying　work　oll　the　Afghan　border．　He　got　on　well

with　Steill　and　at　the　age　of51　described　himselfas‘‘ver｝・enthしlsiastic”125　about

．j　oillill　g．　the　third　expedition．

　　　Anotller　Inember　ofthe　second　expedition　was　Naik　Ram　S　ingh，　a　Sikh　cor－

Poral　who　had　volunteered　to　join　the　tealn　ill　return　for　a　salan・at　least　five
　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　コ　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　ン

times　his　nornnal　pa｝・．126　He　had　good　carpentn・skills、　which　were　necessalT　for

buildiii．g　crates　to　trallspol’t　the　treasしlres　Stein　found．　He　had　also　trained，　at

Steil1’s　reqしlest，　ill　the　developing　ofphotographic　negatives．　Itwas　however、　all

ill－fated　trip　tor　Naik　Ram　Singh　as　he　was　to　Iose　his　sight　quite　sしiddenly　to

glaucoma．　Steill　arrallged　五）r　hiln　to　be　taken　back　t〈）his　family．　He　llコell－

tioned　Naik　Ram　Singh　in　a　letter　to　Keltie　on　July　8th　l9（）8，　sayillg　that　as　Naik

Raln　Singh　has　left　there　was　no　one　to　help　him　with　developillg　the　negatives

and　a　bit　ofabacklog　had　developed．

　　　Stein　was　ver＞・r　loyal　to　his　team　and　fully　appreciated　their　e匝）rts．　At　the　end

ofthe　expedition　when　he　was　visiting　Delhi，　he　tried　to　get　pellsiOlls　or　gratしli－

ties　for　Naik　Ram　Singh　and　the　sun・eyors．　As　a　result（ハf　pressure　fr（）m　Stei　ll，

Naik　Ram　Sillgh　was　a、varded　a　special　pension　by　the　Indian　Governmelit．

Untortunately，　his　c（mditi（）n　declined　velT　rapidly　and　he　died　the　f（）Ilowiiig．

yea「・

　　　One　ofStein’s　Inost　imPortallt　helpers　oll　the　second　expedition　was　his　Chi－

nese　9・　ecretary，　Chiang．　S　teiii　was　aware　from　his　first　expeditk）ll　that　his　lack　of

Chinese　was　a　problem．　XVhen　plannillg　his　second　expedition，　he　was　deter－

mined　to　take　with　him　a　native　Chinese　speaker．　He　came　to　rely　on　Chiang｝s

“ sympathetic　coinpanionship　and　what　Steill　regarded　as　his　‘9．entleinanly’

qualities・”12フ　It　was　Chiang　who　was　i1】s．　tru　in　ental　il／　llegotiatill．g　with　、Va119，

＿
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the　guardian　priest　of　the　Cave　of　a　Thousand　Buddhas，　f（）r　the　removal　of　lts

treasures．　Stein　was　determined　to　help　Chiang　in　his　hopes　for　promotion，　and

as　he　had　done　for　Naik　Ram　Singh，　he　used　his　influence　to　try　to　help　him．　He

must　have　been　successfUl　as　he　mentioned　to　Keltie　he、、・as　grate丘11　fbr　the　rec－

ognition　by　the　Government　of　lndia　for　his　“‘faithful　Chinese　helpmate．”128

　　Although　he　is　not　mentioned　in　any　ofthe　letters　in　the　archive，　it　x、・ould　be

impossible　to　ignore　Stein’s　dog，　Dash．　Dash、、ras　a　much－loved　fbx　terrier．

Steill　was　to　have　seven　dogs　named　Dash，　all　but　one　a　fox　terrier．　All　seem　to

have　been　great　travellers　with　almost　as　much　stalllilla　as　Stein　himself．　He

mentioned　Dash　in　his　Ti〃nes　articles　and　his　continuing　popularity　is　such　that

todav　Dash　has　his　own　web　site．129

PERSONAL

S．　teill　was　a　nユodest，　shy　man　but　where　his　work、～・as　concerned　he　was　ex－

tremelv　f（）rcefuL　In　the　RGS’s　l　902　Year　Book，　he　was　described　as　a　Chinese

scholar．　Stein，　however、　wrote　to　the　Society　describing　hilnself　as　contribしltillg

towards“Central　Asiall　geographical　kno、、・ledge　and　historical　geography　of

Indla，”although　he　says　the　point　was“ofvery　slight　im｝）ortance．”130　He　reiter－

ated　this　description　of　himself　when　he、、’as　given　a　testimonial　at　the　RGS　fbr

his　work　ill　Central　Asia、　statillg、‘‘My　scientific　w（）rk　has　always　been　guided

by　the　（principle）that　geographical　and　historical　researches　lllust　combille

where　the　elucidation　ofanciellt　Asia　is　concerned．”

　　Stein’s　scienti丘c　work　was　all－important　to　him　and　his　frustration　at　Ilot　be－

illg　able　to　pursue　it　is　evident　in　his　letters・　XN’hen　his　application　to　go　on　a

missioll　to　Tibet、、’as　refused、　his　disapPointment　is　clear．　In　a　letter　to　Keltie　he

acknowledged　that　since　he　had　no　independent　molley　he　could　not　go．　And

he　continued，“my　positioll　as　Inspector　General　of　Edしlcation　for　the　North－

、、▼est　Frontier　Pro、・ince　and　Baluchistan　implies　a　hea、T　burden　of　routine

work　which　leaves　Ine　practically　no　leisure　for　serious　sciellti丘c　occupatioll

during　the　greatest　part　ofthe　ycar．”131　He　was　still　upset　as　four　months　later

he　stated，　the　refusal　ofthe　Tibet　NIission　NN・as　a　great　disapPointnient　to　him　g．　elf

and“t〈）those　sch（）lars　at　honie　and　abroad　who　are　best　able　to　judge　of　the

work　I　might　have　done　aboしlt　Lhasa　and　my　qualifications　fbr　iL　But　then　they
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can　scarcely　gauge　the　difficulties　which　stand　in　the　way　of　systen〕atic　organiza－

tioll　of　scienti　fic　ef石orts　il）this　coしlntrv．”132

　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　
ン

　　That　he　had　apPlied　to　go　on　a　mission　to　Tibet　quite　soon　after　taking　up　his

post　ofInspector－General　of　Education、　a　post　that　had　been　created　specifically

f（）rhiln　shows　what、NJalker　calls　his“remarkable　insensitivitv．”133　He　did　not
‘

nlelltioI）in　his　complaint　to　Keltie　that　the　post　alsoトad　attached　the　part－time

position　of　Archaeological　Superintendent，　which　not　onl｝・improved　his　status

but　also　gave　him，　fbr　the　first　time，　an　o缶cial　fbothold　in　the　archaeological

world．　Despite　his　failure　to　loin　the　Tibet　mission，　it　did　not　stop　him　from

applying　f（）r　a　two　and　a　half－year　leave氏）r　his　second　ma．jor　expedition　in

l905，134、、・hich　he　was　granted．

　　Once　Stein　had　an（ハbjective　hl　milld，　he　was　very　single－minded　in　his　pur－

suit　of　his　goal．　Shortly　afモer　he　returned廿om　his　second　expedition　and　was

busy　with　giving　presentations，　writing　his　report　and　organizing　his　collection，

he　was　already　focusing　on　his　next　goaL　He　had　always　been　interested　in　ex－

ploring　Balkh・Afghanistan・In　l902，　he　had　apProached　the　then　Viceroy，　Lord

Curzon　to　supPort　his　expedition．　Even　with　Curzon’s　supPort　he　had　been

unable　to　get　permission　to　enter　Afghanistan．　He　obviously　hoped　to　try　ag．ain

as　he　had　begull　backg．　round　readillg，　mellt壬oning　that　he　had　traced　a　paper

about　Afgha，　nistan　b｝・CoL　Talbot　published　in　1886　and　he　went　on　to　express

his　frustration，“alas　afモer　23　years　it　is　still　closed　ground　to　rne．”135　1n　allother

letter　a　few　days　later，　he　again　expressed　his　disappointment，“I　have　been

“raiting　f（）r　somethlng　cl（）se　to　30　years　at　least　fbr　systematic　investigatiolゴ’、　as

the　area“is　of　the　greatest　historical　interest　as　the　seat　of　that　early　Graeco－

Buddhist　civilization　the　influence　of　which　make　itself　felt　all　through　India

and　Central　Asia．”136

　　Afew　years　later　Stein　again　tried　to　obtain　supPort　fbr　his　plan．　In　a　l911

1etter，　he　wrote　to　thallk　Keltie　tk）r　his　support　alld　requested　if　he　could　find

any　chalmel　to　brillg“mハ・plan　and　Iny　qualifications　for　it　to　Lord　Hardinge’s

（the　Ilew　Vicerov）attelltiOll　I　shall　llot　fail　to　avail　I皿vself　of　vour　kind　offer　of
‘　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　i　　　　　　　　　　　　　 4

help・”137　By　l　912・Stein　had　still　not　given　up，　even　though　the　political　situa－

tion　was　ullstable・It　is　clear　in　a　letter　from　Keltie　that　Stein　thought　the　cir－

cumstances　might　work　to　his　advantage　as　Keltie　wrote，　c‘ThingS　seenl　to　be　ill

avery　agitated　state　at　the　pres．　ent　time　in　Afghanistan，　but　I　understand　you

seem　to　think　it　w〔）uld　be　rather　in　vour£avour．”138　This　was　not　to　be　the　case．
　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　ぼ
Afghallistan　was　all　area　that　was　60rever　to　remain　closed　to　Stein．
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　　Steilゴs　work　was　his　n〕ain　focus　ill　life．　、Vhell　honors　and　accolades　were

given　to　him　he　displayed　characteristic　modesty．　In　April．1909　he　received　Iハo－

tice　that　he　had　been　awarded　the　RGS’s　highest　honor，　the　Founder’s　PtledaLi3g

Afiew　mollths　later　after　hearing　about　the　RGS’s　building　fund　he　decided　to

send　a　donation．　He　was　clearly　concerned　about　the　propriety　as　he　requested

that　only　his　initlals　apPear　on　ally　contribution　list，　as“the　matter　is　slnalL　Yet

it　would　be　desirable　to　avoid　evell　limited　publicity．”140　That　modesty　was

agaill　evident　in1912、　whell　Stein　was　appointed　Knight　Comniander　of　the

IIldian　Empire　making　him　Sir　Aurel　Steill．　However，　he　wrote　to　Keltie　askillg

hhn　t〈）address　him　by　his　plai［1　nalne．141

　　　Another　facet　of　Stein’s　character　revealed　in　the　letters　is　his　identification

with　tlle　ideals　of　the　British　Enipire．　．Steill，　although　born　a　Hu11　q．　tu’i　tl　ll　，　be－

came　a　British　citizen　regarded　Britain　as　his　home．　He　was　concerned　ab（）ut

the　consequellces　of　the　First、Vorld　XVar，　N、・hich　he　mentioned，　in　a　long　and

revealing　letter　t（）Keltie　ill　which　he　stated，

Ifear　this　stl・uggle　Iv▲ll　be　a　long　and　arduoしls　one　but　I　put　my　trust　ill　time　and

British　tcnacib’turlling　the　scales　ill　the　end．　How　great　sacrifiCcs　and　anxieties

could　have　been　saved　if　onl）t　it　had　beell　possible　to　persuade　the　millions　of　the

necessity　of　uni、・ersal　niilitary　trllillillg　ill　peace　time．　I　have　been　a　nieniber〔〕f　thc

National　Servi（：e　League　60r　Man＞t　yeal・s　past、トut　I　have　never　indulged　ill　illusiolls

as　to　the　difficulty　ofgetting　the　people　to£ace　this　necessib’without　prcccding　bit－

tcr　experiences．　　It　is　a　real　comf〔｝rt　to　kno“’India　kept　straight　by　such　sn・onLg

hands　as　those　of　Lord　Hardiii．ge　and　Lord　Kitchener　at　the、Var　O　ffi　ce　is　worth　all

　　　　　l42
tll’lllN’．

NOTES

111（）pkil・k、　Peter　　Forcigii　Devi［s｛））｝the　Si｛k　R，｝t｝［f・p・69・

2Whittleld、　Sllsa｜1加’ビ1S良・ill　Oll’／1・・S欣Ro・｝・」，　P．　H〕．

3RGS　Feb．18［h　19〔）1．

　4、、’〔｛lkei・、，．、1111abel　　Al〃’cJ．Stei〃P．　l　l8．

　s、、アalker，　P．173，

　6、N’alker、　P．138．

　7Cllrzon　had　met　Steiii　in　April　l899、、・hcn　Stein　had　co［iducted　him　around　the　I．ahere　Mu－

scun1．　Stein　had　used　the　opportunity　to　scck　Curz〈｝n’s　help　ill　getting　illto　（：hillesc　Turkcstal1．

Cur川・helped　Stei・get　a　passp・・t、・“hich　all・“’ed　him　entry　t・Turkestan’H・pki・k　p・7コ・

　　8RGS．Kpril　lア「h　l904．
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　　9Thc　Tcrm　Nf）va　l三xpcditic｝Tl［910－13w、、・w．s（、uth－pole．c（）ln／hon｜epage．hu1〕L

　1（DR（；S　Aprn　24th　l906．

　11RSGMavl9【hl906．
　12RS（；Nlav　24th　l9〔｝6．

　13RGSSept．9【h｜906．

　14R（］S　Feb．2nd　l　907．

　15R（；S（）ct．24th　l906．

　16R（〕S　April　l3（h　lgl4．

　17Hopkh・k，　Peter　’1’1ie　G’・c’tl’G‘1〃lc．　p．　l　The　tcrm　was　tl　rst　used　by　Colonel　Charles　Stoddart　in

l842，but　later　immortalizcd　b＞・Rudyard　Kipling　in　his　l901　noyeE、　Kim．

　18R（iTS．　［）ec．15th　l907．

　19Ryavec、　Karl　E．7∫］‘・Pr（・∫‘・〃f－‘f‘1．㍗V‘1／t，c（ゾ．V‘lps∬〃1，∫trElti∫lg　the　At’cli‘le（ハ10g．，iC‘r／Sl，ll　Je）’s｛｝fSir、・、∫〃’el

St‘・i〃ill．Y∫ηjf‘1，rg‘1〃d（1‘1〃su，1（）urnal　ofthe　Royal　Asiatk：Society　l993，　p．233．

2fD　RGS　April　23「J　1902．

　21R（，］S．　Julv24Eh　l902，

　22R（．；S　NIav81h　lgO3．

　23R（．｝S　luh・3「d　l9（）3．

24RGsApril　l7th　l9（〕4．

25RGS　March　l3th　l903．

26RGS　S・pt．27t＋’　19〔〕3．

　27R（〕S（）ct．24［il　l　906．

　28R（；SメへPril　25「h　l9〔）5．

29R（iS　Itme　15th　l905．

30RGS　Jan．6ill　l906．

31R（；SFeb．51hl906．

32RGS　April二4d〕1906．

33Popularacc（）u［lt〈）Fsecond　expeditic）ll．　pubiished　ill　lgl2by　Macmillnn．

34Academic　report　ofsL“coiid　expeditioii　published　hl　I921by　Clarendon　Press．

35Academic　accoullt　of　ti　rst　expedition　pub［ished　in　l90アb｝・Clarendon　Press．

36RGSNIav　lgih　I906，

37Walker．　P．137．

38RGS　Sept．9Lh　l906．

39R（≡S（）ct．24ti1［9〔｝6．

40R（］JS．　Iune　l91h　l908．

41RGS　Augu．st　12’h［908．

42RGS　Julv　l31h　l9｛）8．

43R（］S　Nov．291il　l909．

44R（r，SI）ec，16【hl903．

45R（｝S．・Xpril　l71h　l9（）4．

46RGS　Nov．22・）Lt　l　906．

47RGS　Mai’ch　lgTh　l912，　Stcin　thanks　Keltie　for　the　introduction．

48RGS　Feb．12［h　lg［2．

49、、’alker，　P．191．

50R（r，SNIav5thlgll．

51R（：SNIa、・7Til　l9｜1

52RGS　Feb．19｛11［91こ．

53R（．；S　Feb．2｛｝Eh　lgI2．

54R（；S　Feb．ユじ［［91〕．

55RGS　Feb．22【IJ．191〕

56RGS　Feb．2r｛19｜2．

29 261



s7　RGS　NIar．19【h　1912，

58RGS　Mav　26［h　l912．
　　　　　　　　　　ン
59RGSIulle25〔h　lgl2．

60、Vhitfield、　p．15

61RGS　Nov、4th　1902．　Stein　asked　f（〕r　200　reprint　copies　ofhis　paper　forwarded　to　India，

62RGS　Iuly　13t［i　l　908．　Stein　requested　presentation　copies　of　his　panoramas　in　Nov．　IOth　I906．

Keltie　replied　that　all　59　copies　had　been　scnt　and　3　nlore　copies　would　be　sent　to　Stein　plus　91nore

c・pies　as　auth・rs’ gratis．

63RGS　Oct．　IO「h　I906．　Stehl　askcd　ForCol．　Bruce’s　sun’ev．

　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　「
64RGS　June　15th　1905，

65RGS　Peb．5th　I906，

66RGS　NIav26【h　lgl2，
　　　　　　　　　　

ン

67RGS　June　20［h　1912，

68RGS　Feb，25th　l909．

69RGS　Mav　l4出1909．
　　　　　　　　　イ
70RGS　Nov．29th　l909，

71RGS　June　F【1909．

72RGS　lune　l9【h　l909．

73RGS　Iulv　31’［1909，
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